
1 

Board Meeting Agenda 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
April 27, 2016 

3:00 P.M. 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit).

2. General Manager comments.

3. Board of Director comments.

4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended.

5. Consent Agenda

a. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Cal-Coast Machinery
in the amount of $2,974.23 for the purchase of a John Deere MX6
Lift-type rotary mower deck.

c. Recommend acceptance of the condition acceptance report on the
Mira Monte Well conducted by Pueblo Water Resources and
authorize expenditures of up to $25,000 to complete the
recommendations made in the report.

d. Resolution authorizing access to local, state and federal level
criminal history information by transmitting fingerprint images and
related information to the Department of Justice to be transmitted to
the Federal Bureau of Investigations.

e. Recommend approval of the Purchase Order to Epic Motorsports in
the amount of $15,718.87 for the purchase of a Polaris for use at
Treatment Plant and Dam area.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda



2 

6. Resolution honoring John Parlee upon his retirement.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 

7. Bills

8. Receive and file report entitled “A Current Assessment of Public 
Safety Services at Lake Casitas and Surrounding District Property” 
from Lawrence Beach Allen & Choi.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider Options in this report and 
provide direction to District Staff accordingly. 

9. Resolution Declaring Stage 3 Water Supply Conditions at Lake Casitas.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 

10. Information Items:

a. Finance Committee Minutes.
b. Letter from Bureau of Reclamation in support of Limited Peace

Officer Status at Lake Casitas Recreation Area.
c. Informational memo regarding voting format for the Upper Ventura

River Groundwater Sustainability Agency.
d. Investment Report.

11. Closed Session

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Anticipated Litigation
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of
Section 54956.9, Government Code. (number of potential cases:
one)

b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Govt. Code Sec. 54957)
Title: General Manager

12. Adjournment

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting,
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  113.  (Govt. Code
Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a).



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: MICHAEL MOLER, O&M MANAGER  

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF JOHN DEERE ROTARY CUTTER 

DATE: APRIL 20, 2016 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended to approve the Purchase Order to Cal-Coast Machinery for the 
purchase of one John Deere MX6 Lift-type rotary mower deck in the amount of $2,974.23 
from account 11-5-55-5012-22, Service and Supplies.  This is an unbudgeted purchase. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
There is currently one mower deck unit within the district that has been shared with all 
departments. Each year a four wheel drive tractor is rented to access areas that are too 
steep for District owned equipment. Using the rented tractor and District owned tractor 
simultaneously will provide adequate time for all mowing within the District to be completed 
within the required guidelines for fire prevention and weed abatement. Only having one unit 
does not provide enough time during the growing season to adequately control vegetation. 



 

CASIT AS MUNICIPAL WATER DIST RICT  
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVEN E. WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  TODD EVANS, ASSISTANT ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: MIRA MONTE WELL CONDITION REPORT 

AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO ACCEPT REPORT AND 
AUTHORIZE UP TO $25,000 TO IMPLEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS. 

DATE:  04/22/2016 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to: 
 
1)  Accept the condition assessment report on the Mira Monte Well conducted by 
Pueblo Water Resources dated February 17, 2016. 
 
2) Authorize up to $25,000 to complete the recommendations contained in the 
report including removing the debris from the bottom of the well, lightly brushing the well 
casing, adding a plastic shroud to the submerged pump, lowering the submerged pump 
in the well and documenting the well condition after cleaning with a new video survey. 
 
Background and Discussion: 
 
The Mira Monte Well is over 65 years old. The water is chronically high in nitrates and is 
blended to meet state water quality requirements. Due to these two factors, an 
investigation of the well was conducted.  
 
After carefully reviewing proposals from two different firms, Pueblo Water Resources 
Inc. was chosen to conduct the investigation into the condition of the well. 
 
The investigation is complete and the report is attached. The report contains important 
information about the history, current water quality and the present condition of the well. 
The report states that it is unlikely that either a new well or a modified well would 
produce water with a lower nitrate level.  The well testing demonstrated that the well is 
still capable of producing water in historic volumes.  The report goes on to make 
recommendations on how to proceed with the future of the well. Staff agrees with the 
recommendations being made in the report with the one exception being there is no 
need to install a larger pump at this time. 
 
This is an unbudgeted expense. 



02-0028 sm asr p1 t5 hg investigation tech memo 060515 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 
Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. 
4478 Market St., Suite 705  Tel: 805.644.0470 
Ventura, CA  93003   Fax: 805.644.0480 

  

 

To: Casitas Municipal Water District  Date: February 17, 2016 

Attn: Todd Evans, Assistant Engineer   Project No: 15-0021 

From: Michael Burke, C.Hg., Principal Hydrogeologist 
Martin Feeney, C.Hg., Consulting Hydrogeologist 

Subject: Mira Monte Well No. 3 Assessment. 

This technical memorandum presents the results, findings and recommendations 
developed by Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (Pueblo) through an assessment of Casitas 
Municipal Water District’s (District) Mira Monte Well.  The purpose of the assessment was to 
investigate the current condition of the well, establish well production characteristics, investigate 
rehabilitation options, and determine if modifications or operational changes could be made to 
improve water quality produced by the well, which has historically produced water high in 
nitrates.  

BACKGROUND 

Pueblo’s initial scope of work included review of all data and information pertaining to the 
well that existed in District files, and development of a work plan to further investigate the well.  
The results of this first phase of the Mira Monte Well assessment was presented in a TM 
prepared by Pueblo dated July 8, 2015.  The findings and recommendations developed through 
the initial assessment of the well are repeated concisely below. 

Well Construction and History 

The well is located in the community of Mira Monte at 1259 Cruzero Road.   The well 
was drilled in October 1945 using the cable tool method.  As documented on the State of 
California Department of Water Resources Well Completion Report, the total depth of the 16-
inch diameter carbon steel well is 270 feet, with mills knife perforations between the depths of 
130 feet and 256 feet below ground surface (bgs).  The lithology shown on the DWR Report 
indicates that alluvial materials are present to a depth of 256 feet and below this depth Sespe 
Formation is present.   A location map of the well site is provided as Figure 1 and a schematic 
depiction of the well is presented as Figure 2. 

The Mira Monte Well was acquired by the Casitas Municipal Water District (District) in 
the early 80’s.  Since then it has been a minor source of water supply and has been used 
intermittently to supplement the District’s surface water supply.  The most recent production 
capacity of the well is reportedly in the range of 300 gallons per minute (gpm) to 350 gpm, and 
there is anecdotal evidence that well production has declined in the last decade.  Historically the 



Mira Monte Well Assessment Tech Memo 
Casita Municipal Water District 
February 17, 2016, Page 2 of 10 

15-0021 casitas mira monte assessment tm 021716 

Mira Monte Well has produced groundwater high in nitrates, with concentrations in the 0.9 mg/L 
to 13.3 mg/L range (as Nitrogen). 

Well Maintenance/Modifications 

Throughout the history of the well, various assessments, repairs, and rehabilitation 
efforts have been performed.  Records these efforts available in the District’s files are 
summarized below. 

Video Surveys.  A summary of video survey records of the Mira Monte well is provided 
below;  

 1980 – Two videos were performed in January 1980.  Neither was available for 
review.  Based on written observations of the videos contained in the District’s files, 
the first video documented heavy scale with visible perforations starting at 150 feet.  
Based on the video survey it was suggested that the well be cleaned.  The well was 
“Sonar Jetted” (primer cord denotation in the well to loosen scale), cleaned, and 
bailed to bottom.  A subsequent video showed the well perforations to be clear and 
open. 

 1985 – This video was available for review as part of this investigation.  The video 
was performed by The Well Doctor in May 1985.  Visibility in the video was poor; 
however, moderate to heavy scaling was identifiable.  The bottom of the well was 
documented to be at a depth of 230 feet, suggesting that 20 feet of fill had 
accumulated in the bottom of the well. 

 2002 – This video was not available for review, but written observations of the video 
survey were available in the District’s files.  The video was performed by Barbour Well 
Surveys, and showed the top of perforations at a depth of 180 feet bgs and 
accumulated fill up to a depth of 231 feet bgs.  Heavy encrustation was observed, but 
it was apparently recommended that the well was possibly too fragile to withstand 
Sonar Jetting, therefore, only light brushing was performed. 

Sanitary Seal installation. The District attempted to install a sanitary seal around the 
16-inch diameter casing to a depth of 50 feet in 1980 in an attempt to reduce nitrate ion 
concentrations.  Details of the sanitary seal installation are not available in the records and there 
is no evidence that installed seal has been effective in improving water quality. 

Well Cleaning.  As mentioned above, after video inspection, the well was Sonar Jetted 
in 1980 to remove scale and open the perforations.   In 2002, the well was reportedly lightly 
brushed and bailed. 

Pumping Equipment.  Review of available records document that the pump in the well 
was replaced numerous times over the years.  Until approximately 2007, the well had been 
equipped with a 60 horsepower (hp) pump set at a depth of approximately 220 feet.  In 2007, a 
40 hp pump was installed. 



Mira Monte Well Assessment Tech Memo 
Casita Municipal Water District 
February 17, 2016, Page 3 of 10 

15-0021 casitas mira monte assessment tm 021716 

Water Level History 

Historical water level data are sparse.  Some data are available in Ventura County Water 
Survey Files and other data are available as part of pump efficiency tests.  Available data show 
that the static water level in the well generally fluctuates between the depths of 85 and 125 feet 
bgs, in response to seasonal changes in rainfall amounts and flow conditions in the Ventura 
River.  The historical high water levels occurred in 1967.  Low levels are being observed now as 
a result of the current prolonged drought. 

Well Performance 

Data documenting well performance characteristics are sparse.  Review of the limited 
data suggests that the original discharge rate from the well was approximately 500 gpm, with a 
specific capacity1 of approximately 50 gpm per foot of drawdown (gpm/ft).  Available records 
suggest that the specific capacity of the well declined to about 24 gpm/ft by 1978.  Although 
data are limited, it appears that the Sonar Jet treatment in 1980 resulted in limited improvement 
of the well performance.  The most recently available (2009) value of specific capacity in the 
District’s records indicates a specific capacity of 60 gpm/ft. 

The records indicate that the pumping rate of the well declined sometime after 2007.  
This corresponds with the change in pump horsepower discussed above (60 hp to 40 hp).  The 
data indicate that the observed reduction in pumping rate is associated with the reduction in the 
capacity of the pump, not because of a decline in well performance. 

Water Quality 

Available water quality data document that except for high levels of nitrates the 
groundwater produced from the well is of a good quality, with total dissolved solids (TDS) 
concentrations below 500 milligrams/liter (mg/).  The concentrations of nitrates in water 
produced by the well have been in the range of approximately 0.9 mg/L and 13.3 mg/L (as 
Nitrogen) and generally approach or exceed the primary drinking water standard of 10 mg/L.  
These elevated concentrations have persisted for more than 30 years.  District staff have 
noticed a strong relationship between rainfall and nitrate concentrations; with concentrations 
increasing in response to heavy rainfall and declining during periods of deficient rainfall.  This 
suggests the leaching of residual nitrogen salts in the root zone by percolating groundwater 
recharge. 

 

FINDINGS 

Based on the results of Pueblo’s initial investigation of the Mira Monte Well, 
recommendations for further assessment of the well were developed.  The work plan included 
well performance testing to establish the current capacity of the well, water quality sampling to 

                                                           
1 Specific Capacity is the ratio of discharge to drawdown.  The conventional units are gallons per minute per foot of drawdown (gpm/ft).  It is useful in 
comparing well performance at differing discharge rates and differing pumping lifts.  For example a well that pumps 1000 gpm with 10 foot of drawdown 
would have a specific capacity of 100 gpm/ft, whereas a well that pumps 1000 gpm with 100 feet of drawdown would have a specific capacity of 10 
gpm/ft 



Mira Monte Well Assessment Tech Memo 
Casita Municipal Water District 
February 17, 2016, Page 4 of 10 

15-0021 casitas mira monte assessment tm 021716 

establish existing nitrate conditions, and video surveying to determine the current physical 
condition of the well. 

Well Performance Testing 

Well performance testing was conducted on October 15, 2015.  Pueblo was assisted by 
District staff in performing the test.  The well was operated at a rate near the maximum capacity 
of the existing pump. During the test, the various relevant test data were measured and 
recorded, including the pumping rate, the water levels, the well head pressure, and field water 
quality data (nitrates).  Water quality sampling was also performed during the test.  The test 
duration was 100 minutes.  The existing pump setting at the time of the test was 220 feet below 
the top of the well casing. 

The static water level in the well prior to testing was 135 feet from the top of the well 
casing (which is the reference point for all water level measurements).  The pumping rate for 
most of the test (the rate was variable in the latter part of the test) was approximately 392 gpm.  
The pumping level associated with this rate the end of the test was 139 feet, which corresponds 
to a total drawdown of 4 feet, and a 100-minute specific capacity of 97.5 gpm/ft.  A graphical 
presentation of the test data is provided as Figure 3. 

The semi-log plot of the drawdown data shown on Figure 3 indicates that pumping at the 
test rate of 390 gpm can be sustained for long periods of time without creating a condition of 
excessive drawdown.  Give the current static water level conditions (135 feet) and the existing 
pump setting (220 feet), much higher discharge rates appear to be possible, likely only limited 
by the size of the pumping equipment that can be installed in the well. 

Following the completion of the well testing, Pueblo allowed the water level probe to 
remain in the well for a prolonged period to document static water level conditions and possibly 
identify any influence on the Mira Monte Well from other wells or any trends in regional 
groundwater conditions.  The data collected are presented graphically on Figure 4.  The 
hydrograph shows that there does not appear to be any direct influence on the Mira Monte Well 
by the pumping of other wells, but at the time during which the water level monitoring occurred, 
the water table in the area was declining at a rate of about one foot per month. 

Well Inspection 

The column pipe and pump were removed from the well on November 12, 2015 by 
Cascade Well and Pump.  The materials removed from the well contained heavy coatings and 
nodules of iron oxide deposits directly the result of fouling from iron bacteria.  Photographs 
taken during pump removal showing the extent of iron oxide buildup are presented in Figure 5.  
When the pump was removed from the well, it was observed that an aluminum shroud had been 
strapped onto the top portion of the pump, but the aluminum was severely corroded and only a 
small portion of the shroud remained attached to the pump. 

With the pump out, the well was allowed to remain idle for eight days to allow the water 
in the well to clear in preparation of the video survey.  The video survey was performed by 
Pacific Surveys on November 20, 2015. 

The video generally showed that the blank portion of the casing from near the ground 
surface to a depth of approximately 112 feet showed moderate spalling (flaking off).  Below the 



Mira Monte Well Assessment Tech Memo 
Casita Municipal Water District 
February 17, 2016, Page 5 of 10 

15-0021 casitas mira monte assessment tm 021716 

depth of 112 feet, there was moderate to heavy buildup of scale and nodules on all portions of 
the casing.  Even though the top of the perforations is documented to be at a depth of 130 feet, 
the first perforations visible in the video were at 148 feet.  Heavy biological growth and nodules 
on the casing continued through to the depth of 198 feet, and which point obstructions in the 
casing prevented further video inspection.  The obstruction consisted of the portion of the 
aluminum shroud that had been observed to be strapped onto the top of the pump.  The water 
in the well was clear throughout the entire video, allowing for relatively good inspection of the 
well casing. 

Upon completion of the video survey, the survey operator removed the camera and 
installed a heavy sounding weight onto the end of his cable with the intent of breaking past the 
obstruction and tagging the bottom of the well.  The operation indicated that the effective depth 
of the well (top of accumulated fill) was 225 feet below the top of the casing, which implies that 
there is 31 feet of accumulated fill in the bottom of the well. 

DVD copies of the video survey were provided to the District Engineer at the site, and 
the report on the survey prepared by Pacific Surveys is included in the attachment section of 
this TM. 

Water Quality 

Water quality samples were collected at four times during the well performance test.  
The first, second, and fourth samples were analyzed for nitrates.  A complete general 
mineral/general physical analysis was performed on the third sample, which was collected late 
in the test. The fourth sample was collected immediately prior to termination of the test, at a 
slightly reduced rate.  The nitrate data from the test are presented in Table 1. 

Table 1.  Mira Monte Well Nitrate Water Quality Summary 
(Sample Date 10/15/15, Analyses by FGL Environmental) 

Sample Time Nitrate Concentration, mg/L, as N 

11:25 a.m. 9.5 

12:00 p.m. 9.4 

12:40 p.m. 9.4 

12:50 p.m.* 9.3 

Note: MCL of Nitrate as Nitrogen is 10 mg/L. 

The nitrate concentration of the produced water during the test was consistent and in the 
range of 9.3 mg/L to 9.5 mg/L, just under the MCL of 10.0 mg/L. 



Mira Monte Well Assessment Tech Memo 
Casita Municipal Water District 
February 17, 2016, Page 6 of 10 

15-0021 casitas mira monte assessment tm 021716 

A summary of the general mineral and general physical analyses is provided in Table 2. 

Table 2.  Mira Monte Well Water Quality Summary 
General Mineral and General Physical Constituents 

(Samples 10/15/15, 12:40 p.m.; Analyses by FGL Environmental) 

Constituent Result 

Specific Conductance, uS 654 

Total Dissolved Solids, mg/L 390 

Calcium, mg/L 50 

Magnesium, mg/L 15 

Potassium, mg/L ND 

Sodium, mg/L 52 

Bicarbonate as HCO3, mg/L 160 

Chloride, mg/L 59 

Sulfate, mg/L 35 

Iron, mg/L ND 

Manganese, mg/L ND 

The results of the analysis indicate that with the exception of elevated concentrations of 
nitrate, the water produced by the well is of excellent quality.  The groundwater is of a calcium 
bicarbonate character, with dissolved solids of 390 mg/L and non-detectable levels of iron and 
manganese. 



Mira Monte Well Assessment Tech Memo 
Casita Municipal Water District 
February 17, 2016, Page 7 of 10 

15-0021 casitas mira monte assessment tm 021716 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Conclusions 

Based on the review of the available data and the subsequent testing and inspection of 
the well, we have the following conclusions:  

 The Mira Monte Well is approximately 70 years old.  As part of the video surveying in 
2002, rigorous rehabilitation was not recommended presumably because of the fragile 
physical condition of the well.  The video surveying performed as part of this assessment 
confirms the degraded and fragile state of the well casing.  In addition, the well is heavily 
fouled from biological growth.  There appears to be at this time approximately 31 feet of 
accumulated fill in the bottom of the well. 

 Nitrates in the well have historically been high and continue to be at or near the MCL of 
10 mg/L. 

 There is insufficient hydrogeologic information to indicate that there are any low 
permeability layers within the alluvial materials that may act as an impediment to the 
downward percolation of high nitrate water.  As such, the use of a packer to restrict flow 
into the well from the upper portion of the aquifer is likely impractical. 

 The annular seal installed in the well in 1980 does not appear to be effective in 
mitigating high nitrate conditions. 

 Despite the age of the well and the degree to which fouling of the well has occurred, the 
well performance of the well does not appear to have diminished over the years.  In fact, 
the testing performed as part of this assessment indicates a specific capacity of 
approximately 97 gpm/ft, the highest specific capacity value on record. 

 Given the relatively high specific capacity of the well, pumping rates much greater than 
the test rate of 390 gpm are possible and sustainable.  The limiting factor in the pumping 
rate is likely the size of the pump and motor that can be installed in the well. 

Recommendations 

Based on the information we have reviewed as part of the initial phase of this 
investigation, the follow up assessment and testing recently performed on the Mira Monte Well, 
and our understanding of the District’s desires and limitations with respect to future use of the 
well, we have the following recommendations: 

 No rigorous rehabilitation (chemical means or aggressive mechanical means) should be 
performed on the well because of the advanced age and the current compromised 
physical condition of the well. 

 Prior to reinstalling pumping equipment in the well, the debris causing the obstruction in 
the casing should be removed, and the fill in the bottom of the well should also be 
removed either by bailing or airlifting.  These operations should be accompanied by a 
light brushing of the well casing to remove loose bio-growth on the inside of the well 



Mira Monte Well Assessment Tech Memo 
Casita Municipal Water District 
February 17, 2016, Page 8 of 10 

15-0021 casitas mira monte assessment tm 021716 

casing.  This work should be followed up with another video survey.  It is estimated that 
the cost to remove the debris in the well and bail the fill from the bottom of the well will 
be on the order of $10,000.  Removal of the fill by airlifting, which would also be 
accompanied by swabbing, would serve to accomplish some 
redevelopment/rehabilitation of the well.  The estimated cost for this work is $20,000.  

 Pumping equipment should be reinstalled in the well. However, we believe that there 
may be some merit to installing the pump at a deeper setting (240 feet instead of 220 
feet – one more joint of column pipe), and the pump should be housed in a PVC shroud.  
The deeper setting and the use of a shroud may induce the production of water from 
deeper within the aquifer, which may contain less nitrates.  This may have been the 
purpose of the shroud that had been installed previously, although there are no data to 
indicate whether or not this was effective. 

 Prior to installation of the pumping equipment, the pump and the column pipe should be 
cleaned and disinfected. 

 Installation of a higher capacity pump is a possibility is more capacity is desired from the 
well. 

 Following installation of the pumping equipment, another brief test should be performed, 
similar to the one performed as part of this investigation. 



02-0028 sm asr p1 t5 hg investigation tech memo 060515 

FIGURES



February 2016
Project No. 15-0021

FIGURE 1. MIRA MONTET WELL LOCATION MAP
Casitas Municipal Water District

Cr
uz

er
o 

St

Baldwin Rd

N Ventura Ave

S 
La

 L
un

a 
A

ve

Mira Monte Well



0     --

50     --

130     --

256     --

Concrete Annular Seal
(installed in 1980)

Blank Well Casing
16-inch Diam. Carbon Steel

February 2016
Project No. 15-0021

FIGURE 2. MIRA MONTE WELL DEPICTION
Casitas Municipal Water District

Well Screen
16" Diam. Carbon Steel
Mills Knife Perforations

Pump Pedestal

State Well No.:  4N/23W - 16A1
Date of Construction:  1948
Drilling Method:  Cable Tool
Approx. Ground Elevation:  626 ft.



0.1 1 10 100
1000

10000
100000

1000000

Elapsed Pumping Time, minutes

150

145

140

135

130

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
, f

ee
t -

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g

1 
w

ee
k

1 
m

on
th

3 
m

on
th

s
6 

m
on

th
s

February 2016
Project No. 15-0021

FIGURE 3.  MIRA MONTE WELL PUMP TEST DATA
Casitas Municipal Water District

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

155

150

145

140

135

130

125

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
, f

ee
t -

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g

392 gpm
370 gpm

280 gpm

Pre-Test Static Level - 135 ft

Water Level Recovery

Pre-Test Static Level - 135 ft

Projected Drawdown
at 390 gpm

Pumping Rate = 390 gpm
Drawdown @ 100 min = 4 ft
Specific Capacity @ 100 min = 97.5



10/15/15

10/17/15

10/19/15
10/21/15

10/23/15

10/25/15

10/27/15
10/29/15

10/31/15
11/2/15

11/4/15
11/6/15

11/8/15
11/10/15

11/12/15

11/14/15

160

155

150

145

140

135

130

125

120

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
, i

n 
fe

et
 fr

om
 to

p 
of

 c
as

in
g

Testing Performed on 10/15/15

February 2015
Project No. 15-0021

FIGURE 4.  MIRA MONTE WELL WATER LEVEL MONITORING
Casitas Municipal Water District

Regional Water Level Decline 1 ft/mo



February 2016
Project No. 15-0021

FIGURE 5.  IRON DEPOSITS ON PUMPING EQUIPMENT
Casitas Municipal Water District

Pump Coated with
Iron Oxide Deposits

Iron Oxide Deposits on Underwater Portions of Column Pipe



02-0028 sm asr p1 t5 hg investigation tech memo 060515 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 























CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  REBEKAH VIEIRA, ASSISTANT TO THE GENERAL MANAGER 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ACCESS TO STATE, LOCAL AND FEDERAL LEVEL SUMMARY 
CRIMINAL HISTORY INFORMATION THROUGH THE LIVESCAN FINGERPRINTING PROCESS 

DATE:  APRIL 22, 2016 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt the resolution to authorize the access to federal 
level summary criminal information through the Livescan process. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has approval from the Department of Justice to obtain summary criminal information from 
the state of California but does not currently obtain federal level information. Seeking this Federal level 
information is critical for our prospective employees and volunteers, and would also be a requirement of 
the District should the decision be made to staff Lake Casitas with employees that hold limited peace 
officer status.  The attached resolution as written is required in order to authorize the access to the 
federal level criminal data for use for employment and volunteer purposes. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACCESS TO STATE, LOCAL AND FEDERAL  
CRIMINAL HISTORY INFORMATION FOR EMPLOYMENT, LICENSING OR 

CERTIFICATION PURPOSES UTILIZING THE LIVESCAN PROCESS 
 

 WHEREAS, Penal Code Sections 11105(b)(11) and 13300(b)(11) authorize 
cities, counties, districts and joint powers authorities to access state and local summary 
criminal history information for employment, licensing or certification purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Penal Code Section 11105(b)(11) authorizes cities, counties, 
districts and joint powers authorities to access federal level criminal history information 
by transmitting fingerprint images and related information to the Department of Justice 
to be transmitted to the Federal Bureau of Investigation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Penal Code Sections 11105(b)(11) and 13300(b)(11) require that 
there be a requirement or exclusion from employments, licensing or certification based 
on specific criminal conduct on that part of the subject of the record; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Penal Code Sections 11105(b)(11) and 13300(b)(11) require the city 
council, board of supervisors, governing body of a city, county or district or joint powers 
authority to specifically authorize access to summary criminal history information for 
employment, licensing or certification purposes. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District, that the Casitas Municipal Water District is hereby authorized 
to access state and federal summary criminal history information for employment 
(including volunteers and contract employees), and may not disseminate the information 
to a private entity. 
 
  ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2016 
 
       _________________________ 
       Pete Kaiser, President 
       Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
  



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CC:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER  

FROM: GREG ROMEY, SAFETY OFFICER  

SUBJECT: RECOMMEND PURCHASE OF POLARIS RANGER VEHICLE 

DATE: APRIL 22, 2016  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the General Manager’s 
authorization to purchase, for $15,718.87, a 2016 Polaris Ranger EV for the O&M 
department to be used at the Treatment Plant and Casitas Dam. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The majority of the purchase is covered by the $40,000 budgeted for a skip loader, 
which will not be purchased this year.  On March 23, 2016, the Board authorized the 
purchase of a $26,790.78 utility truck from this budget leaving $13,209.22 for the 
Polaris Ranger vehicle.  An additional budget of $2,509.65 is needed for the proposed 
purchase. Three bids were received that met required specifications for the all-terrain 
vehicle listed on the request for quote.  
 
Bids were received from three dealers as indicated in the following table: 
 
Epic Motorsports $15,718.87 
Simi RV $16,179.31 
Cal Coast Non-Conforming 
 
This vehicle will be utilized by Treatment Plant personnel during normal operations and by 
Distribution for backcountry operations during inclement weather. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION HONORING 
JOHN PARLEE 

 UPON HIS RETIREMENT FROM 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 WHEREAS, John Parlee was hired on December 8, 2003 and has served the 
District for 12 years as a full time employee; and 
 
 WHEREAS, John Parlee has been a key employee in the District’s Electrical and 
Mechanical area where he provided his technical expertise to maintain the 
instrumentation and radio communication equipment that are critical to the operation of 
the Casitas water system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, John Parlee served many years as a union steward; and 
 
 WHEREAS, John Parlee has chosen to retire effective April 30, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wish to take proper notice and express 
appreciation for the dedicated service that Mr. Parlee has rendered to Casitas. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District as follows: 
 
 The Board of Directors hereby expresses its congratulations and sincere 
appreciation to John Parlee for his twelve years of service to Casitas. 
 
 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2016 
 
       _________________________ 
       Pete Kaiser, President 
       Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
  



















































































Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 2



Exhibit 3



2015
Recreation revenue:

Animal permit 16,797$          
Bad debt collection recovery 450                 
Boat fees - annual 38,640            
Boat fees - daily 9,282              
Boat fees - overnight 1,204              
Boat inspection fees - Quagga 3,200              
Boat lock revenue - Quagga 2,786              
Boat rental - concession 60,379            
Cafe - concession 25,120            
Cafe pass fee 22,940            
Cafe pass reimbursement (22,162)          
Camping fees 1,682,659       
Camp promotion 10,587            
Commercials 7,350              
Event reimbursement 50                   
Events 25,826            
Gift cards and certificates (180)               
Guest pass (300)               
Impound fee 525                 
Kayak and canoes annual 4,005              
Kayak and canoes daily 41                   
Miscellaneous revenue 1,096              
Over / short - recreation 139                 
Over / short - water park (14)                 
Park store 46,682            
Rain checks (1,095)            
Reservations 123,523          
Shower facility fees 19,342            
Snow bird pumping 1,370              
Trailer storage fees 173,168          
Vehicle fees - daily 206,701          
Violation ordinance fees 14,925            
Visitor cards 118,651          
Water park - group pass fee (6,809)            
Water park - guest pass (216)               
Water park - junior lifeguard 7,051              
Water park - late day pass fee 73,481            
Water park - lifeguard training 1,317              
Water park - locker fee 1,251              
Water park - next day pass fee (1,492)            
Water park - promotion 18                   
Water park - rain checks (312)               
Water park - reservation fee 29,155            
Water park - season pass fee 25,106            
Water park - shade rental fee 7,610              
Water park - shower facility fee 23,014            
Water park - single splash fee 574,253          
Water park - water fitness - fee 8,688              
Water park snack bar 7,287              

Total recreation revenue 3,343,089$     

Continued on next page

Casitas Municipal Water District
Detail Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Recreation Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

63

Exhibit 3



2015
Recreation expenses:

Administrative overhead burden 974,182$        
Advertising and legal notices 4,692              
Bad debt provision 157                 
Bank charges 4,226              
Chemicals – water playground 1,562              
Chlorine 22,587            
Clothing and personal supplies 10,873            
Communications 23,166            
Computer upgrades – hardware and software 7,705              
Credit card fees 57,663            
District equipment 139,781          
Education and training 2,983              
Licenses and permits 7,326              
Memberships and dues 1,349              
Office supplies 1,357              
Outside contracts 216,279          
Pre-employment screening 7,563              
Postage 1,574              
Printing and binding 7,581              
Private vehicle mileage 451                 
Public information program 19,236            
Purchased water 55,504            
Safety program 1,601              
Salaries and benefits 2,239,510       
Service and supplies 176,627          
Small tools 4,705              
Travel expense 4,282              
Utilities 145,836          

Total 4,140,358       

Recreation operating (loss) before depreciation (797,269)        

Depreciation – recreation department (332,049)        

Recreation operating (loss) (1,129,318)$   

Casitas Municipal Water District
Detail Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Recreation Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

64

Exhibit 3



Exhibit 4



2014

Department Classification

Multiple 
Positions 
Footnote

Annual 
Salary 
Minimum

Annual 
Salary 
Maximum

Total 
Regular 

Pay
Overtime 

Pay
Lump 

Sum Pay Other Pay

Applicable 
Defined 
Benefit 
Pension 
Formula

Employees' 
Share of 
Pension 
Benefits

Defined 
Benefit 
Plan

Deferred 
Compensation/

Defined 
Contribution 

Plan

Health, 
Dental, 
Vision

Recreation Park Services Officer I 48081 58444 43175 15124 0 2805 2% @ 62 0 2603 0 5936
Recreation Park Services Officer III 57916 70398 67673 41345 1354 4020 2% @ 60 4879 6031 0 8336
Recreation Park Services Officer I 48081 58444 42601 15641 0 2112 2% @ 62 0 2579 0 6678
Recreation Park Services Officer I 48081 58444 27958 956 0 703 2% @ 62 0 1084 0 2039
Recreation Park Services Officer IV 66693 81066 80481 31945 0 5316 2% @ 60 5894 7258 0 9205
Recreation Park Services Officer II 52757 64128 55504 35582 0 3553 2% @ 62 0 3644 0 8168
Recreation Park Services Officer III 57916 70398 69081 1243 0 400 2% @ 60 4753 5878 0 15849
Recreation Park Services Officer III 57916 70398 8812 38 6048 12238 2% @ 60 635 790 0 1364

Exhibit 4

























Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 7



Exhibit 8



Exhibit 8



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 10



 
 

SUMMARY OF THE UNIQUE FEATURES OF THE LEXIPOL SYSTEM 
 

Lexipol is America’s leading provider of risk management services and resources for public 
safety organizations, delivering its copyrighted content and unique services through our 
exclusive proprietary web-based development system with an integrated training component. 
Lexipol has helped public safety agencies reduce risk and stay ahead of litigation trends, while 
communicating clear and concise policy guidance to their employees through our copyrighted 
content developed by our accomplished staff of attorneys and public safety experts. 
Additionally, Lexipol has established a unique set of risk management tools for public safety 
organizations by integrating agency-specific, customized policy manuals with the Daily Training 
Bulletin service accessed through a web browser or multi-platform mobile device application. 
The comprehensive Lexipol copyrighted content and services are not available through any 
other public or private resources or organizations. 
 
The program is unique in several ways, and there is no other system that offers the following 
integration in one package: 
 

1. Online (software-as-a-service) copyrighted policy manual content, document 
management, copyrighted training content and testing through web-based 
proprietary system tools. 
 

2. Regular and urgent copyrighted updates to content via web-based tools. 
 

3. Copyrighted Daily Training Bulletins (DTBs) that are based on realistic scenarios and 
written by experienced public safety personnel, including online and real-time testing 
modules. 
 

4. Archiving of all versions of the agency’s policy manual, as well as capturing of user 
electronic signatures that acknowledge policy updates and Daily Training Bulletin 
records and test results. 
 

5. Linking between the Daily Training Bulletins and policy sections to which the DTB 
applies. 
 

6. Robust reporting features, including exception reporting with export to MS Excel 
capabilities. 
 

7.  Contemporary policy content that may be modified by the agency via proprietary 
online tools, thus reducing policy development time significantly. 

Exhibit 10

http://www.lexipol.com/


 
 

ADDITIONAL FEATURES INCLUDE: 
 

Proprietary System and Software Tools: Over 150 copyrighted core policies based on federal 
standards and case law, state statutes and case law, regulatory actions and law enforcement 
best practices. The client agency has full editing capability to customize the manual to reflect 
the agency’s mission and philosophy. 
 
Updates: Lexipol provides regular electronic and interactive updates in response to legislative 
mandates, case law and evolution in best practices. It also provides client alerts and urgent 
updates in response to precedent-setting court decisions or events that call for immediate 
changes to policy. 
 
Policy Training: The integrated Daily Training Bulletin component is a customized, scenario-
based daily training program that links directly to the policy manual and is accessed online via 
web browser or multi-platform mobile device application. DTB records are also archived for easy 
retrieval. 
 
Adaptability: Our clients range from small agencies to large agencies with more than 2,500 
sworn personnel, including municipal police departments, county sheriff’s offices, county 
district/state’s attorneys, port police, probation departments, school district and university police, 
tribal police, fire departments and a diverse group of state regulatory agencies. 
 
Scale: More than 2,100 public safety agencies with well over 100,000 officers or deputies in 26 
states use the Lexipol system. Our subscriber base is one of the largest private networks of law 
enforcement policy collaborators in the nation. 
 
Archiving: Each version of the agency’s policy manual is archived on Lexipol servers, which 
allows for easy retrieval by the agency. This is an invaluable resource in defense litigation or 
personnel matters that call for authenticated copies of policy or training records years after an 
incident. 
 

IMPLEMENTATION/MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
Based on the following, Lexipol is the only source for Implementation/Management Services 
required by the Agency: 
 
In accordance with our standard Online Subscription Agreement (OSA) as stated in Section 4. 
the Lexipol materials are proprietary and copyrighted.  Further, in Section 5. the OSA prohibits 

Exhibit 10

http://www.lexipol.com/


the Agency from uploading the Lexipol content onto any third party knowledge, document, or 
other content management system or service without Lexipol’s prior written consent.   
 
The policies developed by and for the Agency are maintained on the proprietary Lexipol 
Knowledge Management System (KMS) and are not accessible by any other third party and by 
the terms of the OSA may not be copied, republished, loaned, modified, distributed or posted on 
servers where another vendor or third party could view or modify it.  Further, Section 6. of the 
OSA requires that the Agency not share any password or security information which would 
permit any other party to access the information on the Lexipol KMS. 
 
As the result of the foregoing, Lexipol is the only source for the performance of the 
Implementation/Management Services wherein we would incorporate updates to existing 
policies based on exclusive copyrighted materials that are developed by our legal team from 
legislation, legal rulings, court decisions, and best practices tailored to state specific application 
and in the instance of the specific Implementation/Management Services to be provided to the 
Agency, further tailored to the specific needs of the Agency.  This activity would apply also to 
the Daily Training Bulletins which further utilize the exclusive copyrighted materials from policies 
to provide personnel with practical application learning scenarios that aid personnel in 
understanding and applying the policies in their daily activities.   
 
 
For additional information or to obtain assistance please contact Lexipol at 949.484.4444 or visit 

www.lexipol.com. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 10

http://www.lexipol.com/
http://www.lexipol.com/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

CALIFORNIA 
LAW ENFORCEMENT 
Policy and Training 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

C O M P R E H E N S I V E ,  D E F E N S I B L E  P O L I C Y  A N D  D A I L Y  T R A I N I N G   |   L E X I P O L . C O M  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
“In every tragedy there is always a proximate cause: the event that 
instantly preceded the tragedy. But if you go back in time and look for 
the root cause, all too often it comes down to a lack of good policy and 
a lack of good training.”  

– Gordon Graham 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

Table of Contents 
 
 

Blank for Chief’s Preface . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 
 

Law Enforcement Code of Ethics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 
 

Blank for Mission Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 
 

Chapter 1 - Law Enforcement Role and Authority . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 
100 - Law Enforcement Authority . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 
101 - Chief Executive Officer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 
102 - Oath of Office . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
103 - Policy Manual . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 

 

Chapter 2 - Organization and Administration . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
200 - Organizational Structure and Responsibility . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 
201 - [Departmental Directives]s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
202 - Emergency Management Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 
203 - Training Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 
204 - Electronic Mail . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 
205 - Administrative Communications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 
206 - Staffing Levels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 
207 - License to Carry a Firearm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 
208 - Retiree Concealed Firearms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37 

 
Chapter 3 - General Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 

300 - Use of Force . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43 
301 - Use of Force Review Boards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 
302 - Handcuffing and Restraints . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53 
303 - Control Devices and Techniques . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57 
304 - Conducted Energy Device . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62 
305 - Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69 
306 - Firearms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  78 
307 - Vehicle Pursuits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  87 
308 - [Officer/Deputy] Response to Calls . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  99 
309 - Canines . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  102 
310 - Domestic Violence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  112 
311 - Search and Seizure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  119 
312 - Temporary Custody of Juveniles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  121 
313 - Adult Abuse . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  131 
314 - Discriminatory Harassment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  137 
315 - Child Abuse . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  142 
316 - Missing Persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  150 
317 - Public Alerts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  157 
318 - Victim and Witness Assistance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  162 
319 - Hate Crimes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  164 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

325 - Subpoenas and Court Appearances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 189 
326 - Reserve [Officers/Deputies] . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 192 
327 - Mutual Aid and Outside Agency Assistance . . . . . . . . . . . . 198 
328 - Registered Offender Information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 199 
329 - Major Incident Notification . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 202 
330 - Death Investigation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 204 
331 - Identity Theft . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 207 
332 - Communications with Persons with Disabilities . . . . . . . . . . . 208 
333 - Private Persons Arrests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 216 
334 - Anti-Reproductive Rights Crimes Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . 218 
335 - Limited English Proficiency Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 220 
336 - Mandatory School Employee Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . 228 
337 - Biological Samples . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 230 
338 - Chaplains . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 233 
339 - Public Safety Video Surveillance System . . . . . . . . . . . . 239 
340 - Child and Dependent Adult Safety . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 243 
341 - Service Animals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 246 
342 - Volunteer Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 249 
343 - Off-Duty Law Enforcement Actions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 254 
345 - Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation . . . . . . . . . 256 

 

Chapter 4 - Patrol Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
 

258 
400 - Patrol Function . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 259 
401 - Racial- or Bias-Based Profiling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 262 
402 - [Briefing] Training . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 265 
403 - Crime and Disaster Scene Integrity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 266 
404 - Crisis Response Unit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 268 
405 - Ride-Along Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 279 
406 - Hazardous Material Response . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 282 
407 - Hostage and Barricade Incidents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 284 
408 - Response to Bomb Calls . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 289 
409 - Crisis Intervention Incidents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 294 
410 - Mental Illness Commitments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 299 
411 - Cite and Release Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 303 
412 - Foreign Diplomatic and Consular Representatives . . . . . . . . . . 307 
413 - Rapid Response And Deployment Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . 311 
414 - Reporting Police Activity Outside of Jurisdiction . . . . . . . . . . 313 
415 - Immigration Violations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 314 
416 - Emergency Utility Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 319 
417 - Aircraft Accidents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 320 
418 - Field Training Officer Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 323 
419 - Obtaining Air Support . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 326 
 

 
 
 
 

320 - Standards of Conduct . . . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . . 167 
321 - Information Technology Use . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . . 174 
322 - Department Use of Social Media .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 178 
323 - Report Preparation . . . . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  181 
324 - Media Relations . . . . . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  186 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

 
 
 
 

420 - Detentions And Photographing Detainees . . . . . . . . . . . . 327 
421 - Criminal Organizations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 333 
422 - [Watch Commander]s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 338 
423 - Mobile Audio/Video . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 339 
424 - [Mobile Digital Terminal] Use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 346 
425 - Portable Audio/Video Recorders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 349 
426 - Public Recording of Law Enforcement Activity . . . . . . . . . . . 354 
427 - Medical Marijuana . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 357 
428 - Bicycle Patrol Unit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 362 
429 - Foot Pursuits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 365 
430 - Automated License Plate Readers (ALPRs) . . . . . . . . . . . . 370 
431 - Homeless Persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 372 
432 - First Amendment Assemblies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 375 
433 - Civil Disputes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 381 
434 - Suspicious Activity Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 383 
435 - Medical Aid and Response . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 385 

 
Chapter 5 - Traffic Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 390 

500 - Traffic Function and Responsibility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 391 
501 - Traffic Collision Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 394 
502 - Vehicle Towing and Release . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 396 
503 - Vehicle Impound Hearings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 400 
504 - Impaired Driving and Evidence Collection . . . . . . . . . . . . 402 
505 - Traffic Citations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 408 
506 - Disabled Vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 411 
507 - 72-Hour Parking Violations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 412 

 
Chapter 6 - Investigation Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 414 

600 - Investigation and Prosecution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 415 
601 - Sexual Assault Investigations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 420 
602 - Asset Forfeiture . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 425 
603 - Informants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 431 
604 - Eyewitness Identification . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 437 
605 - Brady Material Disclosure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 441 
606 - Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations . . . . . . . . . . . 443 
607 - Warrant Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 446 
608 - Operations Planning and Deconfliction . . . . . . . . . . . . . 450 

 
Chapter 7 - Equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 456 

700 - Department Owned and Personal Property . . . . . . . . . . . . 457 
701 - Personal Communication Devices . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 459 
702 - Vehicle Maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 463 
703 - Vehicle Use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 465 
704 - Cash Handling, Security and Management . . . . . . . . . . . . 472 

 
Chapter 8 - Support Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 474 

800 - Crime Analysis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 475 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

 
 
 
 

801 - Communication Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 476 
802 - Property and Evidence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 478 
803 - [Records Bureau] Procedures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 487 
804 - Restoration of Firearm Serial Numbers . . . . . . . . . . . . . 489 
805 - Records Maintenance and Release . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 491 
806 - Protected Information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 497 
807 - Computers and Digital Evidence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500 
807 - Animal Control . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 504 
808 - Jeanne Clery Campus Security Act . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 508 

 

Chapter 9 - Custody . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 514 
900 - Temporary Custody of Adults . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 515 
901 - Custodial Searches . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 527 
902 - Prison Rape Elimination . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 533 

 
Chapter 10 - Personnel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 543 

1000 - Recruitment and Selection . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 544 
1001 - Evaluation of Employees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 549 
1002 - Promotional and Transfer Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 553 
1003 - Grievance Procedure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 555 
1004 - Anti-Retaliation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 557 
1005 - Reporting of Employee Convictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 561 
1006 - Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 563 
1007 - Sick Leave . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 566 
1008 - Communicable Diseases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 568 
1009 - Smoking and Tobacco Use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 573 
1010 - Personnel Complaints . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 574 
1011 - Seat Belts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 583 
1012 - Body Armor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 585 
1013 - Personnel Files . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 587 
1014 - Request for Change of Assignment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 593 
1015 - Employee Commendations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 594 
1016 - Fitness for Duty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 595 
1017 - Meal Periods and Breaks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 598 
1018 - Lactation Break Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 599 
1019 - Payroll Record Procedures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 601 
1020 - Overtime Compensation Requests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 602 
1021 - Outside Employment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 604 
1022 - Occupational Disease and Work-Related Injury Reporting . . . . . . . 609 
1023 - Personal Appearance Standards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 611 
1024 - Uniform Regulations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 613 
1025 - [Police-Sheriff's] Cadets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 619 
1026 - Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships . . . . . . . . . . . . . 621 
1027 - Department Badges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 624 
1028 - Temporary Modified-Duty Assignments . . . . . . . . . . . . . 626 
1029 - Performance History Audits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 630 
1030 - Employee Speech, Expression and Social Networking . . . . . . . . 633 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

  
 
 
 

 
 
1031 - Illness and Injury Prevention . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 638 

 
Attachments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

 
 
Use of Force 

300.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
This policy provides guidelines on the reasonable use of force. While there is no way to specify the 
exact amount or type of reasonable force to be applied in any situation, every member of this 
department is expected to use these guidelines to make such decisions in a professional, impartial 
and reasonable manner. 

300.1.1   DEFINITIONS 
Definitions related to this policy include: 

Deadly force - Force reasonably anticipated and intended to create a substantial likelihood of 
causing death or very serious injury. 

Force - The application of physical techniques or tactics, chemical agents or weapons to another 
person. It is not a use of force when a person allows him/herself to be searched, escorted, 
handcuffed or restrained. 

300.2   POLICY 
The use of force by law enforcement personnel is a matter of critical concern, both to the public 
and to the law enforcement community. [Officers/Deputies] are involved on a daily basis in 
numerous and varied interactions and, when warranted, may use reasonable force in carrying out 
their duties. 

[Officers/Deputies] must have an understanding of, and true appreciation for, their authority and 
limitations. This is especially true with respect to overcoming resistance while engaged in the 
performance of law enforcement duties. 

The Department recognizes and respects the value of all human life and dignity without prejudice 
to anyone. Vesting [officers/deputies] with the authority to use reasonable force and to protect the 
public welfare requires monitoring, evaluation and a careful balancing of all interests. 

300.2.1   DUTY TO INTERCEDE 
Any [officer/deputy] present and observing another [officer/deputy] using force that is clearly 
beyond that which is objectively reasonable under the circumstances shall, when in a position to 
do so, intercede to prevent the use of unreasonable force. [An officer/A deputy] who observes 
another employee use force that exceeds the degree of force permitted by law should promptly 
report these observations to a supervisor. 

300.3   USE OF FORCE 
[Officers/Deputies] shall use only that amount of force that reasonably appears necessary given 
the facts and circumstances perceived by the [officer/deputy] at the time of the event to 
accomplish a legitimate law enforcement purpose. 

The reasonableness of force will be judged from the perspective of a reasonable [officer/deputy] 
on the scene at the time of the incident. Any evaluation of reasonableness must allow for the fact 
that [officers/deputies] are often forced to make split-second decisions about the amount of force  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
 

 

 

that reasonably appears necessary in a particular situation, with limited information and in 
circumstances that are tense, uncertain and rapidly evolving. 

Given that no policy can realistically predict every possible situation [an officer/a deputy] might 
encounter, [officers/deputies] are entrusted to use well-reasoned discretion in determining the 
appropriate use of force in each incident. 

It is also recognized that circumstances may arise in which [officers/deputies] reasonably believe 
that it would be impractical or ineffective to use any of the tools, weapons or methods provided by 
the Department. [Officers/Deputies] may find it more effective or reasonable to improvise their 
response to rapidly unfolding conditions that they are confronting. In such circumstances, the use 
of any improvised device or method must nonetheless be reasonable and utilized only to the 
degree that reasonably appears necessary to accomplish a legitimate law enforcement purpose. 

While the ultimate objective of every law enforcement encounter is to avoid or minimize injury, 
nothing in this policy requires [an officer/a deputy] to retreat or be exposed to possible physical 
injury before applying reasonable force. 

300.3.1   USE OF FORCE TO EFFECT AN ARREST 
Any peace officer may use reasonable force to effect an arrest, to prevent escape or to overcome 
resistance. A peace officer who makes or attempts to make an arrest need not retreat or desist 
from his/her efforts by reason of resistance or threatened resistance on the part of the person 
being arrested; nor shall [an officer/a deputy] be deemed the aggressor or lose his/her right to self-
defense by the use of reasonable force to effect the arrest, prevent escape or to overcome 
resistance (Penal Code § 835a). 

300.3.2   FACTORS USED TO DETERMINE THE REASONABLENESS OF FORCE 
When determining whether to apply force and evaluating whether [an officer/a deputy] has used 
reasonable force, a number of factors should be taken into consideration, as time and 
circumstances permit. These factors include, but are not limited to: 

(a) Immediacy and severity of the threat to [officers/deputies] or others. 

(b) The conduct of the individual being confronted, as reasonably perceived by the 
[officer/deputy] at the time. 

(c) [Officer/Deputy]/subject factors (age, size, relative strength, skill level, injuries sustained, 
level of exhaustion or fatigue, the number of [officers/deputies] available vs. subjects). 

(d) The effects of drugs or alcohol. 

(e) Subject’s mental state or capacity. 

(f) Proximity of weapons or dangerous improvised devices. 

(g) The degree to which the subject has been effectively restrained and his/her ability to resist 
despite being restrained. 

(h) The availability of other options and their possible effectiveness. 

(i) Seriousness of the suspected offense or reason for contact with the individual.  
             

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
             
             
             
        

(j) Training and experience of the [officer/deputy].       

(k) Potential for injury to [officers/deputies], suspects and others. 

(l) Whether the person appears to be resisting, attempting to evade arrest by flight or is 
attacking the [officer/deputy]. 

(m) The risk and reasonably foreseeable consequences of escape. 

(n) The apparent need for immediate control of the subject or a prompt resolution of the 
situation. 

(o) Whether the conduct of the individual being confronted no longer reasonably appears to 
pose an imminent threat to the [officer/deputy] or others. 

(p) Prior contacts with the subject or awareness of any propensity for violence. 

(q) Any other exigent circumstances. 

300.3.3   PAIN COMPLIANCE TECHNIQUES 
Pain compliance techniques may be effective in controlling a physically or actively resisting 
individual. [Officers/Deputies] may only apply those pain compliance techniques for which they 
have successfully completed department-approved training. [Officers/Deputies] utilizing any pain 
compliance technique should consider: 

(a) The degree to which the application of the technique may be controlled given the level of 
resistance. 

(b) Whether the person can comply with the direction or orders of the [officer/deputy]. 

(c) Whether the person has been given sufficient opportunity to comply. 

The application of any pain compliance technique shall be discontinued once the [officer/deputy] 
determines that compliance has been achieved. 

300.3.4   CAROTID CONTROL HOLD 
The proper application of the carotid control hold may be effective in restraining a violent or 
combative individual. However, due to the potential for injury, the use of the carotid control hold is 
subject to the following: 

(a) The [officer/deputy] shall have successfully completed department-approved training in the 
use and application of the carotid control hold. 

(b) The carotid control hold may only be used when circumstances perceived by the 
[officer/deputy] at the time indicate that such application reasonably appears necessary to 
control a person in any of the following circumstances: 

1. The subject is violent or physically resisting. 

2. The subject, by words or actions, has demonstrated an intention to be violent and 
reasonably appears to have the potential to harm [officers/deputies], him/herself or 
others.           
            

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
            
            
            
   

(c) The application of a carotid control hold on the following individuals should generally be 
avoided unless the totality of the circumstances indicates that other available options 
reasonably appear ineffective, or would present a greater danger to the [officer/deputy], the 
subject or others, and the [officer/deputy] reasonably believes that the need to control the 
individual outweighs the risk of applying a carotid control hold: 

1. Females who are known to be pregnant 

2. Elderly individuals 

3. Obvious juveniles 

4. Individuals who appear to have Down syndrome or who appear to have obvious neck 
deformities or malformations, or visible neck injuries 

(d) Any individual who has had the carotid control hold applied, regardless of whether he/she 
was rendered unconscious, shall be promptly examined by paramedics or other qualified 
medical personnel and should be monitored until examined by paramedics or other 
appropriate medical personnel. 

(e) The [officer/deputy] shall inform any person receiving custody, or any person placed in a 
position of providing care, that the individual has been subjected to the carotid control hold 
and whether the subject lost consciousness as a result. 

(f) Any [officer/deputy] attempting or applying the carotid control hold shall promptly notify a 
supervisor of the use or attempted use of such hold. 

(g) The use or attempted use of the carotid control hold shall be thoroughly documented by the 
[officer/deputy] in any related reports. 

300.3.5   USE OF FORCE TO SEIZE EVIDENCE 
In general, [officers/deputies] may use reasonable force to lawfully seize evidence and to prevent 
the destruction of evidence. However, [officers/deputies] are discouraged from using force solely 
to prevent a person from swallowing evidence or contraband. In the instance when force is 
used, [officers/deputies] should not intentionally use any technique that restricts blood flow to the 
head, restricts respiration or which creates a reasonable likelihood that blood flow to the head or 
respiration would be restricted. [Officers/Deputies] are encouraged to use techniques and methods 
taught by the [Anytown Police Department] for this specific purpose. 

300.4   DEADLY FORCE APPLICATIONS 
Use of deadly force is justified in the following circumstances: 

(a) [An officer/A deputy] may use deadly force to protect him/herself or others from what he/she 
reasonably believes would be an imminent threat of death or serious bodily injury. 

(b) [An officer/A deputy] may use deadly force to stop a fleeing subject when the [officer/deputy] 
has probable cause to believe that the person has committed, or intends to commit, a felony 
involving the infliction or threatened infliction of serious bodily injury or death, and the 
[officer/deputy] reasonably believes that there is an imminent risk of serious bodily injury  
             
             

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
             
             
             
              
or death to any other person if the subject is not immediately apprehended. Under such 
circumstances, a verbal warning should precede the use of deadly force, where feasible. 

Imminent does not mean immediate or instantaneous. An imminent danger may exist even if 
the suspect is not at that very moment pointing a weapon at someone. For example, an 
imminent danger may exist if [an officer/a deputy] reasonably believes any of the following: 

1. The person has a weapon or is attempting to access one and it is reasonable to 
believe the person intends to use it against the [officer/deputy] or another. 

2. The person is capable of causing serious bodily injury or death without a weapon and 
it is reasonable to believe the person intends to do so. 

300.4.1   SHOOTING AT OR FROM MOVING VEHICLES 
Shots fired at or from a moving vehicle are rarely effective. [Officers/Deputies] should move out of 
the path of an approaching vehicle instead of discharging their firearm at the vehicle or any of its 
occupants. [An officer/A deputy] should only discharge a firearm at a moving vehicle or its 
occupants when the [officer/deputy] reasonably believes there are no other reasonable means 
available to avert the threat of the vehicle, or if deadly force other than the vehicle is directed at 
the [officer/deputy] or others. 

[Officers/Deputies] should not shoot at any part of a vehicle in an attempt to disable the vehicle. 

300.5   REPORTING THE USE OF FORCE 
Any use of force by a member of this department shall be documented promptly, completely and 
accurately in an appropriate report, depending on the nature of the incident. The [officer/deputy] 
should articulate the factors perceived and why he/she believed the use of force was reasonable 
under the circumstances. To collect data for purposes of training, resource allocation, analysis and 
related purposes, the Department may require the completion of additional report forms, as 
specified in department policy, procedure or law. 

300.5.1   NOTIFICATION TO SUPERVISORS 
Supervisory notification shall be made as soon as practicable following the application of force in 
any of the following circumstances: 

(a) The application caused a visible injury. 

(b) The application would lead a reasonable [officer/deputy] to conclude that the individual may 
have experienced more than momentary discomfort. 

(c) The individual subjected to the force complained of injury or continuing pain. 

(d) The individual indicates intent to pursue litigation. 

(e) Any application of a [EMDT device] or control device. 

(f) Any application of a restraint device other than handcuffs, shackles or belly chains. 

(g) The individual subjected to the force was rendered unconscious. 

(h) An individual was struck or kicked.        
             

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
             
             
             
  

(i) An individual alleges any of the above has occurred. 

300.5.2   REPORTING TO CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
The [Records Manager] or the authorized designee shall ensure that data required by the 
Department of Justice (DOJ) regarding all officer-involved shootings and incidents involving use of 
force resulting in serious bodily injury is collected and forwarded to the DOJ as required by 
Government Code § 12525.2. 

300.6   MEDICAL CONSIDERATION 
Prior to booking or release, medical assistance shall be obtained for any person who exhibits signs 
of physical distress, who has sustained visible injury, expresses a complaint of injury or continuing 
pain, or who was rendered unconscious. Any individual exhibiting signs of physical distress after 
an encounter should be continuously monitored until he/she can be medically assessed. 

Based upon the [officer/deputy]’s initial assessment of the nature and extent of the subject’s 
injuries, medical assistance may consist of examination by fire personnel, paramedics, hospital 
staff or medical staff at the jail. If any such individual refuses medical attention, such a refusal shall 
be fully documented in related reports and, whenever practicable, should be witnessed by another 
[officer/deputy] and/or medical personnel. If a recording is made of the contact or an interview with 
the individual, any refusal should be included in the recording, if possible. 

The on-scene supervisor or, if the on-scene supervisor is not available, the primary handling 
[officer/deputy] shall ensure that any person providing medical care or receiving custody of a 
person following any use of force is informed that the person was subjected to force. This 
notification shall include a description of the force used and any other circumstances the 
[officer/deputy] reasonably believes would be potential safety or medical risks to the subject (e.g., 
prolonged struggle, extreme agitation, impaired respiration). 

Persons who exhibit extreme agitation, violent irrational behavior accompanied by profuse 
sweating, extraordinary strength beyond their physical characteristics and imperviousness to pain 
(sometimes called “excited delirium”), or who require a protracted physical encounter with multiple 
[officers/deputies] to be brought under control, may be at an increased risk of sudden death. Calls 
involving these persons should be considered medical emergencies. [Officers/Deputies] who 
reasonably suspect a medical emergency should request medical assistance as soon as 
practicable and have medical personnel stage away if appropriate. 

300.7   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITY 
When a supervisor is able to respond to an incident in which there has been a reported application 
of force, the supervisor is expected to: 

(a) Obtain the basic facts from the involved [officers/deputies]. Absent an allegation of 
misconduct or excessive force, this will be considered a routine contact in the normal course 
of duties. 

(b) Ensure that any injured parties are examined and treated.     
             
             
             

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
             
             
             
   

(c) When possible, separately obtain a recorded interview with the subject upon whom force 
was applied. If this interview is conducted without the person having voluntarily waived 
his/her Miranda rights, the following shall apply: 

1. The content of the interview should not be summarized or included in any related 
criminal charges. 

2. The fact that a recorded interview was conducted should be documented in a 
property or other report. 

3. The recording of the interview should be distinctly marked for retention until all 
potential for civil litigation has expired. 

(d) Once any initial medical assessment has been completed or first aid has been rendered, 
ensure that photographs have been taken of any areas involving visible injury or complaint of 
pain, as well as overall photographs of uninjured areas. These photographs should be 
retained until all potential for civil litigation has expired. 

(e) Identify any witnesses not already included in related reports. 

(f) Review and approve all related reports. 

(g) Determine if there is any indication that the subject may pursue civil litigation. 

1. If there is an indication of potential civil litigation, the supervisor should complete and 
route a notification of a potential claim through the appropriate channels. 

(h) Evaluate the circumstances surrounding the incident and initiate an administrative 
investigation if there is a question of policy non-compliance or if for any reason further 
investigation may be appropriate. 

In the event that a supervisor is unable to respond to the scene of an incident involving the 
reported application of force, the supervisor is still expected to complete as many of the above 
items as circumstances permit. 

300.7.1   [WATCH COMMANDER] RESPONSIBILITY 
The [Watch Commander] shall review each use of force by any personnel within his/her command 
to ensure compliance with this policy and to address any training issues. 

300.8   TRAINING 
[Officers/Deputies] will receive periodic training on this policy and demonstrate their knowledge 
and understanding. 
  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 

 
 
Public Recording of Law Enforcement 
Activity 

426.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
This policy provides guidelines for handling situations in which members of the public photograph 
or audio/video record law enforcement actions and other public activities that involve members of 
this department. In addition, this policy provides guidelines for situations where the recordings may 
be evidence. 

426.2   POLICY 
The [Anytown Police Department] recognizes the right of persons to lawfully record members of 
this department who are performing their official duties. Members of this department will not 
prohibit or intentionally interfere with such lawful recordings. Any recordings that are deemed to be 
evidence of a crime or relevant to an investigation will only be collected or seized lawfully.  

[Officers/Deputies] should exercise restraint and should not resort to highly discretionary arrests 
for offenses such as interference, failure to comply or disorderly conduct as a means of preventing 
someone from exercising the right to record members performing their official duties. 

426.3   RECORDING LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY 
Members of the public who wish to record law enforcement activities are limited only in certain 
aspects.  

(a) Recordings may be made from any public place or any private property where the individual 
has the legal right to be present (Penal Code § 69; Penal Code § 148). 

(b) Beyond the act of photographing or recording, individuals may not interfere with the law 
enforcement activity.  Examples of interference include, but are not limited to: 

1.    Tampering with a witness or suspect. 

2. Inciting others to violate the law. 

3. Being so close to the activity as to present a clear safety hazard to 
the [officers/deputies]. 

4. Being so close to the activity as to interfere with [an officer/a deputy]’s effective 
communication with a suspect or witness. 

(c) The individual may not present an undue safety risk to the [officers/deputies], him/herself or 
others. 

426.4   [OFFICER/DEPUTY] RESPONSE 
[Officers/Deputies] should promptly request a supervisor respond to the scene whenever it 
appears that anyone recording activities may be interfering with an investigation or it is believed 
that the recording may be evidence. If practicable, [officers/deputies] should wait for the supervisor 
to arrive before taking enforcement action or seizing any cameras or recording media.  

Whenever practicable, [officers/deputies] or supervisors should give clear and concise warnings to 
individuals who are conducting themselves in a manner that would cause their recording or  

 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
 

 

 

behavior to be unlawful. Accompanying the warnings should be clear directions on what an 
individual can do to be compliant; directions should be specific enough to allow compliance. For 
example, rather than directing an individual to clear the area, [an officer/a deputy] could advise the 
person that he/she may continue observing and recording from the sidewalk across the street.  

If an arrest or other significant enforcement activity is taken as the result of a recording that 
interferes with law enforcement activity, [officers/deputies] shall document in a report the nature 
and extent of the interference or other unlawful behavior and the warnings that were issued. 

426.5   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES 
A supervisor should respond to the scene when requested or any time the circumstances indicate 
a likelihood of interference or other unlawful behavior.  

The supervisor should review the situation with the [officer/deputy] and:  

(a) Request any additional assistance as needed to ensure a safe environment. 

(b) Take a lead role in communicating with individuals who are observing or recording regarding 
any appropriate limitations on their location or behavior. When practical, the encounter should 
be recorded. 

(c) When practicable, allow adequate time for individuals to respond to requests for a change of 
location or behavior. 

(d) Ensure that any enforcement, seizure or other actions are consistent with this policy and 
constitutional and state law. 

(e) Explain alternatives for individuals who wish to express concern about the conduct of 
Department members, such as how and where to file a complaint. 

426.6   SEIZING RECORDINGS AS EVIDENCE 
[Officers/Deputies] should not seize recording devices or media unless (42 USC § 2000aa): 

(a) There is probable cause to believe the person recording has committed or is committing a 
crime to which the recording relates, and the recording is reasonably necessary for 
prosecution of the person. 

1. Absent exigency or consent, a warrant should be sought before seizing or viewing 
such recordings. Reasonable steps may be taken to prevent erasure of the recording. 

(b) There is reason to believe that the immediate seizure of such recordings is necessary to 
prevent serious bodily injury or death of any person. 

(c) The person consents. 

1. To ensure that the consent is voluntary, the request should not be made in a threatening 
or coercive manner. 

2. If the original recording is provided, a copy of the recording should be provided to the 
recording party, if practicable. The recording party should be permitted to be present 
while the copy is being made, if feasible. 

Recording devices and media that are seized will be submitted within the guidelines of the 
Property and Evidence Policy. 
  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
 

 

 
CHAPTER 3 – GENERAL OPERATIONS 
  
Use of Force 
This policy describes the philosophy of the use of force by sworn officers along with guidelines on the 
reasonable use of force and related issues. 
 
BACKGROUND NOTES  

• Lexipol has strongly advocated against the inclusion of any sort of force continuum or 
escalation scale for many years, based upon very favorable language from the courts. The 
U.S. Supreme Court determined that the single question to be asked is whether a particular 
application of force was reasonable under the circumstances presented to the officer at the 
time the decision was made, and not whether some sort of alternative level of force could have 
been used (see e.g., Scott v. Harris, 127 S. Ct. 1769 (2007)). As such, this policy does not 
contain any sort of escalation scale or use of force continuum. We urge you to adopt this 
approach. 

• Specific forms of force (e.g., impact weapons, pepper spray, projectile systems) are covered in 
a separate Control Devices Policy.  

• Canines are covered in a separate Canines Policy, which will be included if you indicated on 
the Questionnaire that your agency has a canine unit. 

 
CUSTOMIZATION GUIDELINES 
Please review the following sections carefully and customize accordingly to meet your agency’s 
practice:  
 

• PAIN COMPLIANCE TECHNIQUES and CAROTID CONTROL HOLD (If your agency does 
not permit these techniques, delete the subsections or indicate that these techniques are 
restricted or prohibited. Please recognize, however, that any such absolute omission may 
prove to be detrimental at some later point if your officers nonetheless apply such force in a 
situation that would have otherwise justified its use.) 

• TRAINING (Although there may not be a specific state training mandate for use of force, 
Lexipol encourages each agency to establish regular training on this policy for all members 
who exercise arrest powers or carry firearms or control devices. A training schedule was 
purposefully not specified to avoid imposing training requirements that may exceed your 
agency’s available resources. However, you should incorporate the appropriate language that 
is consistent with your agency’s training plan into this section.) 

 
 

  

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

 
 

 

 
Use of Force - Medical Consideration 

Topic: Use of Force 
DTB Date: 

SCENARIO: 
You’re grateful that [Officer/Deputy] Jim Nakayama arrived when he did. You were just 
about to lose control of Steve Taylor’s arm from his wild, almost feverish, resistance. 
Finally, the two of you are able to appropriately overpower Mr. Taylor with your combined 
strength and weight. Mr. Taylor is on the ground as you and [Officer/Deputy] Nakayama 
struggle to handcuff him. Everyone is straining through gritted teeth and out of breath. 
Suddenly, Mr. Taylor desperately begins whispering, “I can't breathe, I can’t breathe!” then 
frantically redoubles the intensity of his resistance. 

ISSUE: What should you do? 

 ______________________________________________________________________  

RULE: 
Prior to booking or release, medical assistance shall be obtained for any person who 
exhibits signs of physical distress, who has sustained visible injury, expresses a complaint 
of injury or continuing pain, or who was rendered unconscious. Any individual exhibiting 
signs of physical distress after an encounter should be continuously monitored until 
he/she can be medically assessed. 

Persons who exhibit extreme agitation, violent irrational behavior accompanied by profuse 
sweating, extraordinary strength beyond their physical characteristics and imperviousness 
to pain (sometimes called “excited delirium”), or who require a protracted physical 
encounter with multiple [officers/deputies] to be brought under control, may be at an 
increased risk of sudden death. Calls involving these persons should be considered 
medical emergencies. [Officers/Deputies] who reasonably suspect a medical emergency 
should request medical assistance as soon as practicable and have medical personnel 
stage away if appropriate. 

 ______________________________________________________________________  

ANALYSIS: 
Mr. Taylor  has engaged in a protracted struggle with you and [Officer/Deputy] Nakayama 
and it took both of you to bring him under control. Even though he is not yet 
handcuffed, he has expressed a complaint that he cannot breathe. His complaint of being 
unable to breathe should be treated as an indication of possible severe medical distress.  

CONCLUSION: 

You should consider this call a medical emergency, and you should take appropriate steps 
to obtain emergency medical assistance as soon as practicable. Mr. Taylor must be 
continuously monitored until he can be medically assessed. 

 

Exhibit 10



 
Adoption Date: 2016/01/05 
© 1995-2016 Lexipol, LLC 

  

 

At some point in our careers, we may have heard [an officer/a deputy] say something 
like, "If he can talk, he can breathe." Not only are such comments unhelpful, they can 
seriously hurt us when our actions are reviewed by supervisors, a jury or the public. 

QUESTION: 

An arrestee’s complaint of not being able to breathe is a sign of possible serious physical 
distress and, after we summon emergency medical assistance, we must continually 
monitor the arrestee until he/she can be medically assessed. 

ANSWERS: 

True 

False 

CORRECT ANSWER: 
True 

REFER:    

300.6   MEDICAL CONSIDERATION 

Prior to booking or release, medical assistance shall be obtained for any person who exhibits signs 
of physical distress, who has sustained visible injury, expresses a complaint of injury or continuing 
pain, or who was rendered unconscious. Any individual exhibiting signs of physical distress after 
an encounter should be continuously monitored until he/she can be medically assessed. 

Based upon the [officer/deputy]’s initial assessment of the nature and extent of the subject’s 
injuries, medical assistance may consist of examination by fire personnel, paramedics, hospital 
staff or medical staff at the jail. If any such individual refuses medical attention, such a refusal shall 
be fully documented in related reports and, whenever practicable, should be witnessed by another 
[officer/deputy] and/or medical personnel. If a recording is made of the contact or an interview with 
the individual, any refusal should be included in the recording, if possible. 

The on-scene supervisor, or if not available, the primary handling [officer/deputy] shall ensure that 
any person providing medical care or receiving custody of a person following any use of force is 
informed that the person was subjected to force. This notification shall include a description of the 
force used and any other circumstances the [officer/deputy] reasonably believes would be 
potential safety or medical risks to the subject (e.g., prolonged struggle, extreme agitation, 
impaired respiration). 

Persons who exhibit extreme agitation, violent irrational behavior accompanied by profuse 
sweating, extraordinary strength beyond their physical characteristics and imperviousness to pain 
(sometimes called “excited delirium”), or who require a protracted physical encounter with multiple 
[officers/deputies] to be brought under control, may be at an increased risk of sudden death. Calls 
involving these persons should be considered medical emergencies. [Officers/Deputies] who 
reasonably suspect a medical emergency should request medical assistance as soon as 
practicable and have medical personnel stage away if appropriate. 

 

Exhibit 10



1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE:  Declaration of a Stage 3 Water Supply Condition in the Lake Casitas  

Date:   April 22, 2016 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider the adoption of the resolution to 
declare that a Stage 3 condition exists for the Lake Casitas water supply and provide 
direction to staff to implement specific actions in accordance with the Casitas Water 
Efficiency and Allocation Program. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On April 11, 2016, the Board of Directors were informed of the Casitas water supply and 
demand status by memorandum dated April 4, 2016, attached.  The Board directed the 
General Manager to prepare a resolution for consideration of the action to declare a Stage 3 
condition and implement additional actions and measures pursuant to the Casitas Water 
Efficiency and Allocation Program. 
 
A resolution is prepared and attached for consideration of the Board of Directors.  The 
specific actions are provided in three categories.  The first category of actions are to be 
implemented upon adoption of the resolution, and are specifically guided toward 
communication and public outreach.  The second category is the consideration of limiting the 
further issuance of new service connection or issuance of addition water allocations during 
the Stage 3 condition.  This topic will require further analysis and consideration by the Board 
and legal counsel.  The third category of actions are to be implemented on July 1, 2016, and 
are associated with the adjustment of the allocations, landscape irrigation limitation, and the 
conservation penalty. 
 
If there any questions in this regard, please do not hesitate to ask me. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 16- 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AND IMPLEMENTING  
A STAGE 3 WATER SUPPLY CONDITION 

FOR ALL CASITAS CUSTOMERS 
 

WHEREAS, during the drought experienced in the Ventura River watershed during the 
period of 1987 through 1990, the annual water demands from Lake Casitas escalated and 
temporarily exceeded the safe yield of the Lake Casitas water supply and water stored in Lake 
Casitas diminished from a full condition to approximately 50.2 percent of full lake capacity; and 

WHEREAS, in 1990, the Casitas Municipal Water District (“Casitas”) concluded that the 
long-term demand upon Lake Casitas shall not exceed the safe yield of Lake Casitas and other 
Casitas sources of water supply; and  

WHEREAS, in 1992, Casitas adopted Ordinance 92-7, the Water Efficiency and Allocation 
Program (WEAP), and Resolution 92-11, the Water Shortage Contingency Plan, which was 
implemented in the Casitas Rates and Regulations for Water Service for all Casitas customers; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the application of water allocations, water conservation measures and 
progressive restrictions on water use set forth by the adopted Ordinance 92-7, the Water 
Efficiency and Allocation Program (WEAP), and Resolution 92-11, the Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan, are intended to provide to the water consumer an effective and immediately 
available means of conserving water in a manner that is essential to ensure a reliable and 
sustainable minimum supply of water for the public health, safety, and welfare and to preserve 
valuable limited water supply, avoid depleting water storage to an unacceptably low level, and 
thereby lessen the possibility of experiencing severe critical water shortages if dry conditions 
continue or worsen; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2004, Casitas evaluated the safe yield of the Ventura River Project under 
the changed conditions imposed by the 2003 Biological Opinion, pursuant to the Federal 
Endangered Species Act, for the operations of the Robles Diversion and the inclusion of the 
change in water supply with the eventual removal of Matilija Dam, concluding that the safe 
yield of the Ventura River Project is significantly reduced as a result of these changing 
conditions and that alternative demand reduction measures may be required to balance long-
term water supplies and water demands while meeting the needs of the environment; and  
 

WHEREAS, in 2005, Casitas prepared and adopted the 2005 Urban Water Management 
Plan that summarized information on present and future water resources and demands, 
provided water supply planning, provided water shortage contingency planning, and described 



Casitas efforts to implement water conservation and efficient water uses for all Casitas’ water 
customers; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2006, Casitas implemented operational measures at the Robles Diversion 
and Fish Passage Facility to comply with the 2003 Biological Opinion for the restoration of the 
endangered steelhead trout in the Ventura River, and that the implementation of said 
operational measures lessened the quantities of water that could be diverted to and stored in 
Lake Casitas for beneficial uses, and thereby reducing the safe yield of the Ventura River 
Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2009, the State of California enacted the Urban Water Management 
Planning Act (SB7X X) that legislated requirements for long-term water resources planning to 
ensure adequate water supplies to meet existing and future demands for water; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2011, in accordance with California Water Code §10620–10656, 
Casitas adopted the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan that further defined stages of action 
to achieve the balance between water supplies and demand through an equitable distribution 
of the existing water supplies, and to establish consumption limits in its water shortage 
contingency plan that would reduce water use; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Casitas 2010 Urban Water Management Plan established that a Level 
Two Alert may result with conditions that cause a lowering of water stored in Lake Casitas to be 
at or near the 50% full; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2014, the Governor of California proclaimed a State of 
Emergency to exist throughout California due to severe drought conditions that have persisted 
since 2012 and further proclaimed on April 25, 2014 that a Continued State of Emergency exists 
throughout California due to the ongoing drought; and 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s proclamation called upon all Californians to reduce their 
water usage by 20 percent; and 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s proclamation called upon local urban water suppliers and 
municipalities to implement any local water shortage contingency plans immediately in order to 
avoid or forestall outright restrictions that could become necessary later in the drought season; 
and 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2014, the Casitas Board proclaimed by Resolution 14-14 that 
drought conditions are stressing the groundwater and surface water supplies in western 
Ventura County to levels not seen in decades, and reaffirmed the Casitas 1992 Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan that sets a goal of a 20 percent voluntary reduction in water use; and 



WHEREAS, on July 15, 2014, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted 
Resolution No. 2014-0038 that implemented emergency regulations and actions to further 
reduce water demands of urban customers by the implementation of specific water waste 
prohibitions and required the implementation of water supplier’s approved Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan at a stage that requires mandatory water use restrictions on outdoor 
irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water; and 

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2014, Casitas adopted modifications to the Water Waste 
Prohibition Ordinance and the Casitas Water Shortage Contingency Plan to comply with the 
directives of the State Water Resources Control Board Resolution No. 2014-0038; and 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2015, the Governor of California issued Executive Order B-29-15, 
ordering that the State Water Resources Control Board impose restrictions to achieve a 
statewide 25% reduction in potable urban water usage through February 28, 2016, to lead a 
statewide initiative to collectively replace 50 million square feet of lawns and ornamental turf 
with drought tolerant landscapes, impose restrictions to require that commercial, industrial, 
and institutional properties immediately implement water efficiency measures to reduce 
potable water usage in an amount consistent with the statewide 25% reduction in water use, 
prohibit irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street medians, and prohibit 
irrigation with potable water outside of newly constructed homes and buildings that is not 
delivered by drip or microspray systems, and direct urban water suppliers to develop rate 
structures and other pricing mechanisms, including but not limited to surcharges, fees, and 
penalties, to maximize water conservation consistent with statewide water restrictions; and 

WHEREAS, on April 11, 2015, the volume of water stored in Lake Casitas had declined to 
50 percent of total storage capacity and the Board of Directors declared that a Stage 2 
condition exists at Lake Casitas; and 

WHEREAS, on June 10, 2015, the Casitas Board of Directors adopted revisions to the 
Water Efficiency and Allocation Program and directed staff to implement the Program that sets 
a goal of a 20 percent mandatory reduction in water use during the Stage 2 water supply 
condition at Lake ; and  

WHEREAS, the General Manager has reported to the Board of Directors by 
memorandum dated April 4, 2016, that during the winter months of 2016 the Ventura River 
watershed continued to experience below normal rainfall that is a continuation of drought 
conditions that are likely to extend through the remainder of calendar year 2016, and possibly 
into future years; and 

WHEREAS, the releases of water from Lake Casitas to the Casitas main conveyance 
system totaled 17,246 acre-feet, which is less than the annual safe yield of Lake Casitas (20,850 



Acre-feet per year), such that on April 22, 2016, the storage level of water in Lake Casitas has 
declined to 41.7 percent and will continue to decline to less than 40 percent during the summer 
of 2016, until adequate rainfall and runoff reoccur in the local watersheds; and  

WHEREAS, as the drought continues, groundwater sources will become depleted and 
the remaining Lake Casitas water supply will become a primary source of water to supplement 
uses that otherwise rely on local groundwater sources; and 

WHEREAS, the Casitas Water Efficiency and Allocation Program identifies a decline to 
forty (40) percent of storage available in Lake Casitas as the Stage 3 condition and subject to 
water demand reduction measures to preserve the Lake Casitas water supply during a 
continuation of the drought; and 

WHEREAS, Article X, Section 2 of the California Constitution declares that the general 
welfare requires that water resources be put to beneficial use, that waste or unreasonable use 
or unreasonable method of use of water be prevented and that conservation of water be fully 
exercised with a view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof; and 

WHEREAS, California Water Code, Section 375, authorizes a water supplier to adopt and 
enforce a comprehensive water conservation program to reduce water consumption and 
conserve water supplies; and 

WHEREAS, California Water Code, Section 71611 provides that a district may sell water 
under its control, without preference, to cities, other public corporations and agencies, and 
persons, within the district for use within the district. 

WHEREAS, California Water Code Section 71640 authorizes the governing body of a 
municipal water district to restrict the use of district water during any emergency caused by 
drought, or other threatened or existing water shortage, and may prohibit the wastage of 
district water or the use of district water during such periods for any purpose other than 
household uses or such other restricted uses as the district determines to be necessary, and 
may prohibit use of district water during such periods for specific uses which it finds to be 
nonessential; and 

WHEREAS, California Water Code Section 71642 authorizes the governing body of a 
municipal water district to find the existence or threat of a drought emergency or other 
threatened or existing water shortage, and that finding is prima facie evidence of the fact or 
matter so found, and such fact or matter shall be presumed to continue unchanged unless and 
until a contrary finding is made by the board by resolution or ordinance; and 



WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code section 71641 and Government Code section 6061, 
the [District] must publish in a newspaper of general circulation any ordinance setting forth the 
restrictions, prohibitions, and exclusions determined to be necessary under Water Code section 
71640 within 10 days after its adoption; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: by of the Casitas Municipal Water District as 
follows: 

1) Pursuant to Water Code section 71642, and for the reasons set forth herein, the Board 
continues with the determination of the existence or threat of a drought emergency or 
other water shortage condition; and 
 

2) Pursuant to California Water Code Section 71611 and under the authority of Water 
Code Section 71640, any water that is delivered from Lake Casitas and the Casitas 
distribution system that is used outside the District boundaries is considered an 
unreasonable use and an unreasonable method of use; and  
 

3) Casitas hereby declares that a Stage 3 water supply condition exists within the service 
area of the Casitas Municipal Water District; and 
 

4) The Board of Directors hereby directs staff to take the following actions that are 
described in the 2015 Water Efficiency and Allocation Program for a Stage 3 condition in 
Lake Casitas, in the specified time, that include: 

a) Effective upon adoption of this Resolution: 
i. Continue with the Stage 1 and Stage 2 measures; and  

ii. Expand and intensify the public information campaign within Casitas 
Municipal Water District that a mandatory reduction in water use is 
required during Stage 3 water supply conditions. 

iii. Implement measures to inform and educate all water users within Casitas 
Municipal Water District as to methods for achieving the reduction in 
water use. 

iv. Increase the current level of public outreach. 
v. Develop a budget to support water conservation and Public outreach 

efforts.  
 

b) Prior to July 1, 2016, bring forward to the Board of Directors recommendations 
to consider a moratorium or controlled issuance of new water service 
connection and allocations. 

 



c) Effective July 1, 2016, implement the following Stage 3 actions and measures:  
i. Reduce the initial allocation of every customer by an additional ten (10) 

percent;  and 
ii. Maintain the same conservation penalties as adopted by the Board of 

Directors on July 22, 2015; and 
iii. Restrict landscape irrigation watering to one day a week, such day to be 

specified by Casitas. 
 

5) The Stage 3 water supply condition shall be presumed to continue unchanged unless 
and until a contrary finding is made by the Board by resolution or ordinance. 

ADOPTED this 27th  day of April, 2016 

____________________________________ 
Peter Kaiser, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Jim Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE:  2016 Casitas Water Supply and Demand Status 

Date:   April 4, 2016 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors read and consider the content of the following 
memorandum, ask questions and provide direction to staff at a subsequent meeting of the Board of 
Directors.  Such direction may include but not be limited to the declaration that a Stage 3 condition 
exists in the Lake Casitas water supply and direction to staff to implement specific water conservation 
and demand reduction measures actions that are required to be taken by all Casitas customers.   

2. BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with the direction provided in the Water Efficiency and Allocation Program, adopted 
June 10, 2015, specifically Section 5.2 entitled “Water Resource Conditions and Actions,” the General 
Manager has prepared an annual assessment of local water supplies, water demands, and current 
effectiveness of water demand reduction measures is attached to this memorandum.  The information 
in the assessment may necessitate the consideration and direction from the Board of Directors for 
further actions to preserve water supply for the future. 
 

3. ASSESSMENT SUMMARY 
 

The assessment provided in this memorandum can be summarized by the following points: 
a) The Ventura River watershed is experiencing a continued drought condition and did not 

receive appreciable rainfall during the 2016 winter to restore water supplies in either the local 
groundwater basins or Lake Casitas;  and 

b) Lake Casitas will decline to forty (40) percent stored water level by June 1, 2016, at which time 
a Stage 3 condition in Lake Casitas is recognized;  and 

c) The Lake Casitas stored water level will continue to decline further until significant rainfall 
occurs in the future, and given no rain and depending upon the rate of water extraction, may 
attain minimum pool between four to six years from the present condition; 

d) Water use in FY 2015-16 for all Casitas classifications has declined in varying degree during 
the drought as compared to water use in FY 2013-14; and 

e) The Casitas urban customer water use in the first six months of FY 2015-16 has decrease 38 
percent from that of the same months in FY 2013-14, which exceeds the State’s regulatory 
drought emergency standard of 32 percent for Casitas; and 

f) Casitas has implemented Stage 2 mandatory compliance of customers to an individual 
allocation assignment, strengthened public outreach to conserve water supplies, and 



2 

 

implemented demand reduction measure with a Conservation surcharge of $1.00 per unit for 
monthly residential exceedance of the monthly allocation assignments and $0.25 per unit for 
exceedance of annual allocation assignment for all other classifications; 

g) Growth is extremely slow as evidenced by the issuance of limited numbers of meters and 
allocations. 

 
The assessments are to be considered in the implementation of a change in Stage and the demand 
reduction measures for FY 2016-17.  
 

4. ASSESSMENTS 
 
HYDROLOGY – WEATHER CONDITIONS.   
Over the last nine years, western Ventura County has been under the influence of a high pressure 
weather system that has allowed only a limited number of rain storms to approach the local 
watersheds.  Normal or average rainfall for the area is approximately 21 inches. Only four of the last 
ten years were above normal rainfall years and the last five years have been below average in rainfall 
(Table 1).  It is very apparent that a prolonged dry cycle has been occurring in the Ventura River 
watershed. 
 
 Table 1 – Rainfall Totals for Matilija Dam and Casitas Dam (inches) 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Matilija Dam 9.23 33.62 16.56 36.54 40.28 14.21 11.85 14.76 17.57 13.35 

Casitas Dam 8.60 26.19 14.82 31.13 35.99 15.11 10.99 9.90 11.65 11.07 

 
The start of the winter of FY 2015-16 had high expectations of an El Nino condition that would bring 
needed water rainfall to replenish the groundwater basins and surface water storage – “Too Big to 
Fail” (David Patzert, JPL).  Now, we have observed that the El Nino storms have swept through 
California approximately 200 miles north of Ventura County.  There were no significant rain events in 
the Ventura River watersheds and no appreciable recovery to our water systems.  There remains 
some optimism that rain could occur in April and May, but generally the late rains of April and May 
have not been of sufficient magnitude to cause appreciable runoff in our local watershed.  This year’s 
rainy season appears to be effectively over for the Ventura River watershed. 
 
In addition to the lack of local rainfall, the ambient air temperatures have been above average, if not 
record setting.  The elevated temperatures cause a rise in the need for irrigation water. 
 
The Climate Prediction Center/NCEP/NWS issued a March 10, 2016 discussion on the El 
Nino/Southern Oscillation (ENSO) that in summary stated “A transition to ENSO-neutral is likely 
during the late Northern Hemisphere spring or early summer 2016, with close to a 50% chance for La 
Nina conditions to develop by the fall.”   Previous La Nina years have tended to produce dry to 
moderate rainfall years in Southern California and are not likely to improve water supply conditions 
during the winter of 2017. 
 
WATER RESOURCES.    



3 

 

The primary water resources within the Casitas district boundaries are collectively the groundwater 
basins of the Ventura River, Ojai and Upper Ojai, and the surface water storage at Lake Casitas. 
 
Groundwater Basins.  The winter of 2016 brought minimal recovery to the local groundwater basins 
within the Casitas district boundaries.   
 
The Upper Ventura River groundwater storage levels gained slightly during the few rain events of 
2016.  Surface flows were more indicative of urban flash runoff rather than a full basin condition.  
There was no surface flow continuity from Robles to Foster Park.  The Ventura River Water District 
and Meiners Oaks Water District have expressed to Casitas that their ability to pump groundwater will 
cease by mid-summer of 2016, at which time the water demand loads from each agency will be 
transferred to the Lake Casitas supply. 
 
The Ojai Basin storage did not recover appreciably from the 2016 rainfall.  The Ojai Basin has been in 
a decline but remained above the record low storage level of the early 1950s.  The Upper Ojai Basin, 
while having declined due to the lack of rainfall and infiltration during the current drought period, is 
relatively good condition to continue to provide enough water to pumpers in the Upper Ojai.  
 
Surface Water Storage - Lake Casitas.  Lake Casitas is the primary source of water supply for the 
Casitas Municipal Water District, constructed in the 1950’s as a supplemental supply to local 
groundwater and as a primary source for areas that had no groundwater.  Lake Casitas was last at a 
near full storage capacity (252,867 acre-feet) in May 2006.  Since 2006, as illustrated in Figure 1, 
Lake Casitas storage has been in decline. The amount of water in storage at Lake Casitas on April 1, 
2016 is approximately 106,000 acre-feet (41.7%).  The amount of water stored in Lake Casitas will 
decline to less than 40 percent by June 1, 2016, and continue to decline through the peak water 
demands of the 2016 summer.  It is unknown when the next significant rainfall events will return to 
cause a water storage recovery in Lake Casitas. 

 
Figure 1 – Lake Casitas Storage Volume and Rainfall Trend (1970 to 2016) 
 



4 

 

A critical question that has been asked many times is - How long will the Lake Casitas supply last 
before declining to a minimum pool condition?  Figure 2 provides an estimated trend for Lake Casitas 
where hypothetically there are no inflows (surface flows or rainfall) in the future, assuming four 
variations to the annual water demand, and the application of the evaporation rate to the declining 
surface area of Lake Casitas.  The answer to the minimum pool question, from the starting point of 
106,000 acre-feet in storage, is approximately four to six years. 
 

 
Figure 2 – Hypothetical Decline in Lake Casitas Storage 
 
WATER USE.   
Casitas has many time reviewed water use conditions in comparison to the safe yield of Lake Casitas.  
The latest work in 2003 reflected the water demands that occurred during the 1987 through 1991 
drought period, with the concern that multiple dry years would result in an escalation of the water 
demand to levels above the safe yield, and that a continuation of the escalated water demand could 
rapidly lead to a Lake Casitas minimum pool condition.   
 
In the 2007 through 2013 period, the water use tracked consistent to the 2003 evaluation.  In 2014 
and 2015, the third and fourth consecutive dry years, there appears to be a significant change in 
water use that reversed the escalation trend that was observed in 1990’s.  Figure 3 illustrates the 
changes in water demand from 1970 to present, and the significant change beginning in 2014. 
Possible influences to the change could be improvements to agricultural irrigation methods, the loss of 
large customers in the City of Ventura, heightened public participation in water conservation. 
 
In April 2014, the State issued its Drought Emergency Declaration with a major public relations 
campaign.  Casitas had already started its public information campaign with the recognition of 
declining lake levels to 50 percent of supply.  The water conservation campaigns in 2015 intensified 
further with Lake Casitas declining to below the 50 percent storage level and the issuance of the 
State’s Drought Emergency Regulations that required Casitas urban customers to reduce water use 
by 32 percent from the water use of calendar year 2013. 



5 

 

 

 
Figure 3 – Lake Casitas Releases to the Main Conveyance System 
 
Drought Water Demand Response.  A critical function of the WEAP is to manage water supplies in 
such a manner that prevent Lake Casitas from reaching a minim pool condition.  A lesson learned 
from the Australian drought experience – start intense conservation measures early, rather than later, 
later is too late. 
 
In May 2015, Casitas informed all customers of the implementation of the WEAP, the assignment of 
individual water allocations to each meter service, and the application of annual and monthly 
conservation surcharges for water use that is in excess of the assigned allocation.  The Casitas 
declaration of a Stage 2 condition shifted water conservation from a voluntary status to a mandatory 
adherence to not exceed assigned water allocations.  The district’s Water Conservation personnel 
developed and assigned water allocations to each individual meter service.  The Casitas 
Administration Department performed a test run of the billing during July and August of 2015.  The full 
implementation of the monthly conservation surcharge for the Residential Classification began with 
the September 2015 water use billing.  The goal for the Casitas customers is to achieve water use 
that would be at or less than the allocation assignment and in effect, result in water use that would 
mandatorily not exceed 80 percent of the 1989 water use.  The District’s urban water use has also 
been challenged to meet the State’s assignment of a 32 percent reduction in water use from that 
water use occurring in calendar year 2013. 
 
The urban classifications (commercial, interdepartmental, fire, industrial, other, and residential) water 
demand by the for the first six months of FY 2015-16 has attained a 38 percent reduction from the FY 
2013-14 water demand for the same classifications.  This exceeds the State’s water conservation 
requirement to attain a 32 percent reduction.  It should be recognized that Resale customers also had 



6 

 

similar water demand reductions in their service areas while meeting the State’s conservation 
standards.  The public appears to have responded to the requests to conserve water. 
 
The comparative data in Table 2 illustrates the customer classification water use response under the 
Stage 2 Condition and the State’s Drought Emergency Regulations for the first six months of FY 
2015-16.  The comparison is limited to the six month period for which data is available and 
representative of recent events.  Each of the listed six month periods experienced similar low rainfall 
totals and exhibit the water demand reduction resulting from the public outreach that was 
implemented by Casitas and the State’s declaration of a drought.   

Table 2 – Customer Classification Allocation Assignment and Water Use – Six-Month Comparison 

Water Customer 
Classification 

 
Annual  

Allocation 
 

(AF/YR) 

FY 13-14 
 

Jul-Dec  
 

(AF) 

FY 15-16 
 

Jul-Dec  
 

(AF) 

Change 
FY 13-14  

to  
FY 15-16 

 (AF) 

% Change 
FY 13-14  

to  
FY 15-16 

  
Agriculture-Domestic 6732 3,068 2,862 -206 -7 % 

Agriculture 3200 2,431 1,971 -460 - 19 % 

Commercial 536 488 348 -140 - 29 % 

Interdepartmental 100 85 43 -42 - 51 % 

Fire 0 1 0 -1 - 100% 

Industrial 54 11 8 -3 -38 % 

Other 184 180 80 -100 - 56 % 

Residential 2290 1,066 656 -410 - 38 % 

Resale Pumped 1846 889 715 -174 -20 % 

Resale Gravity 5000 3,470 2,519 -951 - 27 % 

Temporary 0 46 9 -37 - 80 % 

Total 20,142 11,735 9,211 -2,524 - 22 % 

 
The water sales data for the FY 2015-16, through February 2016, indicates continued conservation 
that trend toward a fiscal water sales total of approximately 16,000 acre-feet. 
 
The annual allocation numbers included in Table 2 are representative of the sum of allocation 
assignments in each classification.  It should be noted that the annual allocation also accounts for the 
agricultural groundwater water demand known to date that may shift to the Lake Casitas supply. 
 
The District has been tracking the performance of the Residential classification relative to the monthly 
water allocation assignments for each individual residential account.  In September 2015, the water 
used in excess of the monthly allocation was billed as a Conservation Penalty at the rate of $1.00 per 
unit.  In general, the residential classification appears to be practicing appropriate water conservation, 
with over 85 percent of the accounts using less water than the assigned allocation (Table 3).  For 
some customers calling into the District about their conservation penalty, it appears that some 
customers did not make adjustments to outdoor irrigation to match the season variation in the 



7 

 

allocation assignment.  Many customers are only slightly over the allocation threshold, while staff has 
noted that approximately 5 percent of the residential customers are far from meeting the allocation 
assignment and will be contacted by Casitas staff to offer assistance to help those high-use 
customers reduce their water demand. 
 
Table 3 – Residential Water Demand in Excess of Allocation Assignments 
 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Total 

Number of Residential Accounts 2,709 2,709 2,711 2,700 2,706 2,704  

Accounts with Conservation Penalty  228 407 412 368 218 368  

Units Over-Allocation (Units) 9,936 13,220 12,628 10,072 3,339 6,698 55,893 

Residential Water Sales (Units) 55,321 44,867 44,867 41,382 21,780 29,185 237,402 

 
For the remaining classifications, the initial allocation is an annual water demand, with a Conservation 
Penalty that is to be billed in July 2016.  The annual allocation classifications will be assessed $0.25 
per unit in the Conservation Penalty.  The annual classifications are informed monthly of their water 
use in progress. Staff has noted that a majority of the annual classification customers are likely to 
attain water use that is less than their assigned annual allocation, while some have already or are 
likely to surpass the annual allocation assignment and receive a bill in July 2016 for the conservation 
Penalty. 
 
Revenue.  The reduction in water demand with no change in water rates has resulted in a reduction in 
revenue.  The Revenue and Expense Report for July 1, 2015 through January 2016, indicates that 
water sales revenue is $942,413.65 less than the same period in FY 2014-15.  The good news is that 
the revenue through January 2016 ($4,227,662) is pacing to meet the budget estimate of $7,288,779, 
based on current rates and the sale of 16,619 acre-feet.  Applying an additional 10 percent of water 
demand reduction measures could result in an additional $700,000 reduction in revenue and will 
begin to affect Casitas’ ability to meet budgetary requirements to operate and maintain the Casitas 
water system unless balanced by appropriate changes to water rates or the application of variation of 
water sales reserves. 
 
Growth.  The service area of the District is in extremely slow growth.  Most requests the Casitas 
receives are related to expansions of agriculture or residential housing construction.  The slow growth 
rate is indicative of the information illustrated in Table 4.  During the past five years, Casitas has 
installed fourteen meters and issued 17.3 acre-feet of water allocation.  There are three pending 
requests for allocation expansions that have not moved forward to date.  On the average of less than 
three meters per year have been installed, and minus the agricultural allocation, less than 2.5 acre-
feet per year allocated to new or expanding water use.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 

 

Table 4 – Water Service and Allocation Assignments by Casitas MWD (CY 2012-2015) 
 

No. of 
Meters 
Issued 

Allocation 
Issued 

(AF) 

Project types and expansions of existing allocations 

2012 3 2.22 Three residential projects, one expansion of allocation 

2013 1 1.88 1 residential project, 1 expansion of allocation 

2014 6 9.85 5 AF for one Agricultural parcel, five other residential projects 
and two expansions of allocation. 

2015 1 1.27 One residential project in Ventura River Water District service 
area and 1 expansion of allocation 

2016 3 2.08 Residential projects in Casitas (two) and Ventura River Water 
District (one). 

Pending 0 4.92 
4 AF expansion potential for Agricultural parcel, 0.92 AF for two 
other commercial project allocation expansions 

 
 

5. RECOMMENDED WEAP ACTIONS 
 

The WEAP lists in Table 6 a series of actions to be considered by the Board of Directors for 
implementation when transitioning to any Stage condition of Lake Casitas.  A copy of the WEAP Table 
6 is attached to the end of this memorandum.  The following are assessments of the WEAP actions: 
 
Communications.   
 Declare Stage 3.  Key to the action is the recognition that the change in Stage condition is 

eminent and likely to occur and persist in the near future.  The declaration of a change to 
Stage 3 condition is accomplished by a resolution of the Board of Directors.  Stage 3 is 
identified as a condition in which a water shortage is eminent. 

 
 Expand and intensify public information campaign.  The purpose of making the 

assessments and declaration in April of each year is to allow for additional communications to 
the customers of the impending change that will become effective on July 1.  A change that 
further reduces the water allocation or changes the conservation surcharge is intended to 
affect the water demands on the Lake Casitas supply.  The changes will also have an effect on 
the planning of businesses, agricultural customers, and higher use residential customers.  
With a notification of the changes in April, there is a two month period for customers to make 
adjustments to their water demand. 

 
 Provide regular briefings, publish monthly consumption report.  A part of this task is 

being accomplished as require by the State Water resources Control Board.  Additionally, the 
billing system provides to the customer a monthly status on their water use progress and the 
application of conservation surcharges.  



9 

 

 
 Hire additional temporary staff in customer service, conservation, and water 

distribution for water waste enforcement.  This topic has been discussed among staff and 
there does not appear to be a need at this time for additional staffing.  This could change and 
additional staffing justified. 

 
 Moratorium on new service connections.  A specific concern that occurred in the 1990’s 

was that a declaration of a water shortage would cause an influx of additional requests for 
water service and allocations from land developers.  Indeed, that did happen in 1990.  Casitas 
declared a water service moratorium and developed a waiting list that included 300 applicants.  
When it came time to pay for the allocation and water service connection, only one in ten 
applicants completed the process.  Based on the Growth section above, an alternative to the 
complete moratorium, which is generally a temporary action, is to (1) limit the volume of 
allocation to be issued in any one year,  suggest 10 acre-feet per fiscal year, (2) require a non-
refundable deposit of $1,000 upon submittal of the application for the water meter service 
and/or allocation, and (3) apply $800 of the non-refundable deposit toward the allocation fee, 
and (4) require the fees and water service agreement be completed within 60 days of notice of 
availability by the District. 

 
Customer Demand Reduction Measures. 
 Continue with Stage 1 and 2 measures.  Water conservation is becoming more of a way of 

life for the District’s customers and the District should intensify the message that a water 
shortage is eminent.  The enforcement of the Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance has 
continued and should continue into Stage 3 under the current system of public notification of 
waste.  The system for allocation assignment and billing has now been implemented and 
should continue into Stage 3. 

 
 Reduce water allocations.  Begin Stage 3 on July 1, 2016, with a 10 percent reduction of 

water demand from that required in Stage 2.  The customer water demand reduction response 
in the first seven months of FY 2015-16 have been very positive.  If the water demand 
reduction measures are not being met during the course of FY 2016-17, make an additional 
adjustment to the allocations. 

 
 Landscape watering restricted to one day per week.  Direct staff to develop a plan for 

implementing the one-day a week landscape watering restriction.  This would allow for 
coordination with other water agencies and provide guidelines that easy for the customers to 
follow and straight forward for staff to enforce. 

 
 No landscape changes unless xeriscape.   This requirement will take some coordination 

with customers, County and City planning offices, and probably more restricted by the 
allocation assignments for the parcel. 

 
Penalties and Rates. 
 Consider and implement Conservation Penalty for water use in excess of allocation.  

The District has established a conservation penalty of $1.00 for each unit of water that is over 
the monthly allocation assignment for the Residential classification and a $0.25 for each unit of 
water that is over the annual allocation for all other classification of service.  It is 



10 

 

recommended to keep the conservation penalty at the same value for FY 2016-17 and change 
only if it is determined that water demand reduction is not being attained. 

 
 Consider rates for revenue stabilization and cost of service.  The Board will be 

considering water rates to achieve revenue stabilization and cost of service that will become 
effective for FY 2016-17. 

 
6. OTHER. 

Alternate Water Resources.  It is understood that the City of Ventura is actively seeking to 
expand to alternate water resources that may include direct potable reuse, emergency 
interconnection to State Water via Callegaus Municipal Water District, and seawater 
desalinization.  The Board of Directors may direct the General Manager to engage in 
discussion with the City to include the participation by Casitas and other local water agencies. 

 
7. POLICY AND PROGRAMS IN PLACE. 

 
The combination of the State’s recognition of a statewide drought and the Casitas recognition of 
transitioning to a Stage 2 condition at Lake Casitas has resulted in actions to reduce water demands 
that have been adopted by the Board of Directors and the State of California.   
 
Resolution Adopting Management Priorities of Casitas Municipal Water District, Resolution 
No. 93-12.  On March 10th, 1993, the Casitas Board of Directors resolved by Resolution No. 93-12 (1) 
that Casitas shall manage Lake Casitas and its water supplies so that it can provide back up to other 
water systems and meet its direct customer demands during droughts without running the lake dry. 
 
Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance.  (Ordinance 15-02).  This Ordinance established water waste 
prohibitions and identified actions against violations of the Ordinance.  Casitas staff has been actively 
engaged with the public reports of water waste. 
 
Water Conservation Program.  Since 1992, Casitas has actively assisted water customers 
throughout the district with fixture retrofits, irrigation surveys, residential and institutional water use 
surveys, provision of water conservation materials to local schools, public workshops and 
presentations on a wide variety of water conservation topics, public messaging, and financing 
assistance for water well improvements.  The Water Conservation Program has partnered with other 
Ventura County agencies to obtain grants for additional water conservation measures. 
 
Water Efficiency and Allocation Program (WEAP).  The WEAP is the key water management tool 
for long-term drought response and water demand.  The WEAP was adopted by the Board of 
Directors in January 1992 and recently adopted a revision of the WEAP in June 2015.  The WEAP is 
the backbone to the Casitas Urban Water Management Plan.    A critical element of the WEAP 
implementation is to cause water demands to be commensurate to the declared Stage of Lake 
Casitas.   
 
In April, 2015, the Board of Directors declared that a Stage 2 condition for the Lake Casitas supply 
and directed staff to implement the Stage 2 actions that required a mandatory twenty percent 
reduction in water use from that water use in 1989.  The mandatory reduction in water use twenty 
percent was considered in the assignment of water allocations for each Casitas water service.   



11 

 

 
By July 2015, Casitas completed the assignment of customer water allocations, and the initial billing 
modifications to track customer allocation assignments and conservation penalty for water use that is 
over the allocation assignment.   The residential classification was placed on a monthly schedule for 
the water billing and conservation penalty, while all other classifications were placed on an annual 
schedule.  Each water bill informs the customer of their allocation status. 
 
State of California.  On January 17, 2014, the Governor of the State of California proclaimed a state 
of emergency due to water supply impacts caused by three consecutive years of drought.  The 
Governor has extended the state of emergency through October 2016.  The State Water resources 
Control Board (SWRCB) has adopted and continued drought emergency regulations that require an 
urban water demand reduction from a base water use that occurred in FY 2013-14.  For Casitas, the 
assigned for urban water demand reduction is 32 percent.  The messaging by the State of a statewide 
drought has been very effective in causing local public response.   
 
The El Nino of 2016 has replenished Northern California’s water supply and snow pack.  State Water 
availability has moved from a low of 15 percent in 2015 to a current level of 45 percent.  The State 
can be expected to continue with the goal to reduce water demands statewide.  One El Nino has 
improved the short-term water outlook but has not solved the State’s water issues. 
 

8. CONCLUSION. 
 
The Ventura River watershed is in the grips of an extended drought period and Lake Casitas has 
performed as designed to supply water during the drought.  We have no idea of how much longer until 
rain will return to the water shed in ample amounts to restore the groundwater basins, Lake Casitas 
and surface flows of local rivers.  It will take critical and timely action by all water purveyors and the 
local communities and customers to survive on a limited water supply. 
 
If you have any other questions, please ask. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 

 

Table 6 – Stage Actions and Water Demand Reduction Measures 
Water 

Shortage 
Condition 

Key Casitas 
Communications and 
Actions 

Customer Demand 
Reduction Measures 

Penalties 
And 

Rates 
Stage 1 

 
Supply Range 
100% - 50% 

 
Demand Reduction 

0% 
 

(80% of 1989 use) 

• Initiate public information and 
advertising campaign. 

• Publicize ways to reduce water 
consumption. 

• Coordinate conservation actions 
with other water purveyors and 
cities. 

• Perform water audits and promote 
water efficient use/conversions. 

• Conduct water workshops. 
• Temporary staffing for public 

inquiries, as needed. 

• Water conservation practices requested of 
all customer classifications. 

• Adhere to Water Waste Prohibition 
Ordinance. 

• Adhere to assigned water allocation or 
less. 
  

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 

Stage 2 
 

Supply Range 
50% - 40% 

 
Demand Reduction 

From Stage 1 
Allocation 

20% 

• Declare Stage 2 
• Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
• Intensify public information 

campaign. 
• Optimize existing water resources. 
• Intensify leak detection. 
• Develop appeals staffing. 
• Consult with major customers to 

develop conservation plans and 
water use audits. 

 

• Continue all Stage 1 measures. 
• Landscape watering restricted to two (2) 

watering days per week. 
• Require water audits for large water 

users; implement recommendations of the 
water audits. 

• Businesses display “save water” signage. 
• Increase public information. 
 

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation – response to 
reduced allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 

Stage 3 
 

Supply Range 
40% - 30% 

 
Demand Reduction 

From Stage 1 
Allocation 

30% 

• Declare Stage 3 
• Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
• Expand and intensify public 

information campaign. 
• Provide regular briefings, publish 

monthly consumption report. 
• Hire additional temporary staff in 

customer service, conservation, 
and water distribution.  Water 
waste enforcement. 

• Moratorium on new service 
connections. 

• Continue with Stage 1 and 2 measures. 
• Reduced water allocations. 
• Landscape watering restricted to one (1) 

watering day per week. 
• No landscape changes unless xeriscape. 

 

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation – response to 
reduced allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 

Stage 4 
 

Supply Range 
30% - 25% 

 
Demand Reduction 

From Stage 1 
Allocation 

40% 

• Declare Stage 4 
• Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
• Continue to provide regular media 

briefings. 
• Scale up appeals  
• Open drought information center. 
 

• Continue with Stage 1 through 3 
measures. 

• Reduced water allocations. 
• Landscape watering restricted to one (1) 

watering day per week. 
• Implement restrictive Irrigation delivery 

schedule. 
• Minimal water for large landscapes. 
• Consider prohibition of filling swimming 

pools and fountains. 
• Implement restrictive Irrigation delivery 

schedule and quantities greater than 60%. 
 

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation – response to 
reduced allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 

Stage 5 
 

Supply Range 
25% - 0% 

 
Demand Reduction 

From Stage 1 
Allocation 

50% 

• Declare Stage 5 
• Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
• Minimize outdoor water use and 

non-essential uses. 
• Implement aggressive public 

outreach and education program. 
• Implement crisis communications 

plan. 
• Coordinate with State and local 

agencies to address enforcement 
challenges. 

• Water Shortage Emergency 
declaration to be considered. 

• Continue with Stage 1 through 4 
measures. 

• Reduced water allocations. 
• Rescind Temporary meters issued. 
• No turf irrigation. 
• Implement restrictive Irrigation delivery 

schedule and quantities greater than 50%. 
 
 

 

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation – response to 
reduced allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Finance Committee 

 
DATE:    April 15, 2016 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:    Finance Committee Meeting of April 15, 2016, at 0930 hours 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Peter Kaiser and Director Mary Bergen  
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Accounting Manager/Treasurer, Denise Collin 
 Public:  Mr. Robert Daddi and Mr. William Ulrich 
 

2. Public Comments.   
Mr. Daddi asked that Casitas request the City of Ventura to obtain State Water and not provide 
Casitas water to those communities that can get State Water.  Further comment pertaining to 
other water companies’ ability to write will-serve letters and are continuing to build. 
 

3. Board/Management comments.    
The General Manager informed the Committee that there is a need to expend funds to either 
recondition or replace a pump motor at the Fortress Pump Plant.  Reconditioning is approximately 
$2,500, and if not able to recondition the new pump motor will cost approximately $7,500. 
 

4. Review of the Financial Statement for February 2016. 
The Committee reviewed the financial statement and discussed revenue, expenses, and 
allocation penalty charges that have been collected to date.  Denise Collin informed the 
Committee that Casitas has received the grant reimbursement in the amount of $789,000 from 
the State Drought Grant for Casitas’ installation of the hypolimnetic system in Lake Casitas.  
Committee reviewed additional revenue to come in the next months from taxes (Prop. 1A and 
CFD 2013-01). 
  

5. Review of the Water Consumption for February 2016. 
The Committee reviewed the water consumption numbers for February 2016.  It was noted that 
February was an unusual hot month that caused agriculture to use more water than a normal 
February.  There is a notable reduction in water use in every other classification.   
 

6. Discussion regarding 2016/2017 Budget. 
Denise Collin presented the initial work on budget revenue, expenses and capital projects.  The 
Committee reviewed general aspects of the budget and will move the budget discussion to a 
Board workshop to be conducted at the earliest time. 
 

7. Discussion regarding Water Rates. 
The Committee discussed the initial rate structures that have been developed initially by Raftelis 
Consultants and slight modifications that consider options of a two-tier and a four tier rates for the 
residential classification.  The Committee discussed bringing the water rate discussion forward to 
the Board during a workshop to be conducted at the earliest time.  The Committee discussed the 
schedule for the Board’s review and approval of the budget and water rates. 
 



 2 

 
8. Review of the Engagement Letter from the Pun Group for the 2015-16 Audit. 

The Committee was made aware of the letter and the direction of the General Manager to sign 
and return to letter under the current contractual agreement with the Pun Group. 
 

9. Discussion regarding the purchase of a Polaris from Epic Motorsports in the amount of 
$15,718.87.  
The Committee was informed of the bids received for a utility vehicle to be used at the water 
treatment plant.  The purchase of the Polaris is ready to move forward to the Board of Directors.   
 
 
 







1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE:  Information – Upper Ventura River Groundwater Sustainability Agency –  

GSA Formation Committee Meeting Agency Formation – Voting Format 

Date:   April 18, 2016 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive, provide comment to the General Manager, and 
file this memorandum. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
A committee of representatives from local water agencies and the County of Ventura are proceeding 
with the formation of a Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the Upper Ventura River.  The 
committee is developing a joint powers agreement that will govern the actions of the Agency. 
 
MEETING TOPIC: 
 
During the April 10, 2016, formation committee meeting the topic was member voting.  After much 
deliberation, the formation committee moved to (1) aim for consensus first, (2) if consensus cannot be 
reached, most decisions will be made using a simple majority; and (3) major decisions (to be further 
defined) will require a supermajority of 6 votes. 
 
If the Casitas Board of Directors has any concerns or additional information regarding this direction, 
please advise during the regular meeting of the Board on April 27, 2016. 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

04/19/16

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EAZM3 7/24/2023 $1,658,682 $1,722,000 2.380% 9/16/2014 8.83% 2615

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $854,808 $846,703 2.790% 3/28/2016 4.34% 3560

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFNR4 11/18/2024 $809,060 $805,613 2.870% 11/18/2015 4.13% 3089

Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,016,022 $1,008,930 3.000% 3/24/2016 5.17% 3889

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 33133EFHV2 10/13/2022 $588,394 $580,963 2.200% 10/23/2015 2.98% 2334

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EED31 4/28/2025 $2,988,971 $2,968,089 2.800% 6/2/2015 15.21% 3249

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381TA3 1/17/2023 $277,619 $283,555 2.240% 9/8/2014 1.45% 2428

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,370,833 $1,374,867 1.625% 10/3/2012 7.05% 1135

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379RN1 12/27/2024 $978,364 $993,498 2.840% 6/18/2014 5.09% 3128

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $772,839 $758,050 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.89% 3294

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 8/14/2024 $126,966 $131,702 2.500% 7/3/2014 0.68% 2995

676633 Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 6/11/2021 $674,668 $675,662 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.46% 1852

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $885,027 2.500% 7/3/2014 4.54% 3071

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 1/13/2022 $678,300 $696,284 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.57% 2064

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G34R8 7/23/2021 $513,841 $517,026 2.000% 12/2/2014 2.65% 1894

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,058,283 $1,067,480 5.125% 1/3/2012 5.47% 568

*TB Federal National Assn 3136G0K67 4/9/2021 $192,000 $192,597 2.000% 12/2/2014 0.99% 1790

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $684,705 $686,395 1.375% 3/12/2012 3.52% 206

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 7/15/2018 $1,146,994 $1,154,557 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.92% 806

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF4 1/15/2020 $1,131,762 $1,167,379 1.375% 11/18/2015 5.98% 1346

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $768,969 $828,946 2.750% 12/13/2013 4.25% 2726

Accrued Interest $162,883

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $19,141,518 $19,508,205 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $448 $448 0.32% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,848 $2,848 0.50% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $19,144,814 $19,511,501 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $19,146,835 $19,515,217

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $18,178,893 $18,457,707

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $4,810,921 $4,810,921

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $8,643 $8,643 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $23,964,378 $24,331,065

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $24,087,003 $24,365,816

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	4-27-16 Agenda
	Purchase of Mower Deck 4-20-16
	2016-04-19 Memo Report on Mira Monte Well 
	Recommendation:

	2016-02-17 CMWD Mira Monte Well Assessment Report 021716
	mira monte well pump test field sheet.pdf
	fig 5 iron on pipe.pdf
	fig 4 casitas mira monte well water level data.pdf
	fig 3 casitas mira monte well test.pdf
	fig 2 mira monte well drawing.pdf
	fig 1 mira monte well location map.pdf
	fgl wq results casita mira monte well.pdf
	15-0021 casitas mira monte assessment tm 021716.pdf

	Memo livescan reso
	Reso DOJ FBI
	Revision - Treament Plant - vehicle purchase - Polaris - 4-22-16
	Reso John Parlee
	Bills
	LBAC Report (1)
	Exhibits 1-4
	Exhibits 5-6
	Exhibits 7-10
	Stage 3 Declaration Memo 04 22 2016
	MEMORANDUM

	Stage 3 Resolution 04 22 2016
	Water Status Report 04 04 2016
	MEMORANDUM

	Fin Minutes 04 15 2016
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Ltr from Bureau in support of limited peace officer status at LCRA
	04 10 GSA Formation Memo on Voting
	MEMORANDUM

	Investment Report 04-19-16



